DRAWNEAR

TO

GOD

My Book Of Topical Scriptures
Book Nine

Later Additions

Compiled by Joan Royer

DRAW NEAR TO GOD

My Book Of Topical Scriptures
Book Nine - Later Additions

~~~~~~

# INTRODUCTION

Many years ago I began collecting scripture from the Bible pertaining to a certain topic which the Lord led me to search out. As I studied each topic, I learned to know the author of the Bible, the Lord, better and better. I began to absorb into my heart and mind what the Lord thought and felt about certain things or topics I studied.

I kept these in a computer file which I could return to when I wanted to renew my understanding of the Lord regarding that thought. Slowly I added to it over many, many years.

Sometimes I even went to the Concordance and read through the portions of scriptures on a topic I was curious about that day, and even that was inspiring and encouraging to me.

Why? Because when I encounter the Lord's words, I encounter the Lord Himself.

THAT is what I was searching for - the encounter with the Lord and to connect with Him. When you connect with a person you usually connect through what he says.

As I did this I grew to love the Lord more and more and learned what He is like.

Now the Lord is guiding me to organize those topical scriptures into a book for others (you) to read through and learn about who He is, what He is like, what He thinks, and how He loves you - to help you connect with Him also.

I allow a section at the end of each topic where you can write the thoughts He gives you as you read on that topic. You may put your favorite scripture there, or another scripture that speaks to you on that topic.

All of this is to enable you to know the Lord better, to love Him more, and to grow closer in your own personal relationship with Him.

Draw near to God and He will draw near to you. (James 4:8 RSV)

I bless you as you read His word.

(Scriptures are from the NIV Bible unless otherwise indicated.)

# PAY ATTENTION AND KEEP MY WORDS

When I read the Word of God, I find it very helpful to personalize the words and make them fit me. I make them my confession and declaration about who I am, who God is, what He will do for me, etc. I will use the following scriptures (which I like to read and declare at the beginning of my daily quiet time with the Lord) as examples and write after each scripture what I might declare.

My son, pay attention to what I say; turn your ear to my words. Do not let them out of your sight, keep them within your heart; for they are life to those who find them and health to one's whole body. (Proverbs 4:20-22)

Lord, I am paying attention to what You say. I turn my ear to Your words. I keep them within my sight. I keep Your words within my heart. Your words are life to me and they are health to my whole body.

So do not fear, for I am with you; do not be dismayed, for I am your God. I will strengthen you and help you, I will uphold you with my righteous right hand. (Isaiah 41:10)

I do not fear because You, Lord, are with me. I am not dismayed, because You, Lord, are my God. You will strengthen me. You will help me. You will uphold me with Your righteous right hand.

Peace I leave with you; my peace I give you. I do not give to you as the world gives. Do not let your hearts be troubled and do not be afraid. (John 14:27)

Lord, You leave Your peace with me. You give Your peace to me. I accept Your peace and receive it from You. You do not give me peace as the world gives. I do not let my heart be troubled or afraid.

"For I know the plans I have for you," declares the Lord, "plans to prosper you and not to harm you, plans to give you hope and a future. Then you will call upon me and come and pray to me, and I will listen to you. You will seek me and find me when you seek me with all your heart. I will be found by you," declares the Lord. - Jeremiah 29:11-14

Lord, You know the plans You have for me. They are plans to prosper me and not to harm me. Your plans give me hope and a future. Then I will call upon You and come and pray to You, and You will listen to me. I will seek You and find You when I seek You with all my heart. Lord, You will be found by me. You declare it. Thank You, Lord!

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction
Pay attention and keep My words
Table of contents
The Lord's words to me
My words to the Lord

#### LATER ADDITIONS

- 1. Age-Ages
- 2. Agreement
- 3. Anointed
- 4. Ark of the covenant
- 5. Beautiful
- 6. Before
- 7. Blindness healed by Christ
- 8. Boundary lines
- 9. Breath of God
- 10. By the Word of the Lord
- 11. Children of God
- 12. Coming of our Lord Jesus Christ
- 13. Committed
- 14. Conform Conformed
- 15. Crossed over from death to life
- 16. Cup
- 17. Day of redemption
- 18. Deep things
- 19. Directs your paths
- 20. Divine radiance
- 21. Election
- 22. Face
- 23. First

- 24. For His name's sake
- 25. Friendship secrets of heaven
- 26. Great, greater, greatest, greatness
- 27. He will hold me
- 28. Heartbeat of God
- 29. His Word dwelling in us
- 30. Hold on
- 31. Hour of Trial Tribulation
- 32. Humble
- 33. I am in you and you are in Me
- 34. I WILL statements of God
- 35. Lips
- 36. Pray over finances
- 37. Salt and light
- 38. The Body of Christ
- 39. The Bride of Christ
- 40. The day of the Lord's anger
- 41. The end
- 42. The Lord's reward
- 43. Who Jesus says He is
- 44. With the measure you use
- 45. Words of Jesus to speak to fears

**Proverbs 8:34** 

~~~~~~

Blessed is the man who listens to me, watching daily at my doors, waiting at my doorway. For whoever finds me finds life, and receives favor from the Lord.

THE LORD'S WORDS TO ME

Come away My beloved. Be still and know that I am God.

My son, pay attention to what I say; turn your ear to my words. Do not let them out of your sight, keep them within your heart; for they are life to those who find them and health to one's whole body. Blessed is the man who listens to me, watching daily at my doors, waiting at my doorway. For whoever finds me finds life, and receives favor from the Lord.

So do not fear, for I am with you; do not be dismayed, for I am your God. I will strengthen you and help you, I will uphold you with my righteous right hand.

For I know the plans I have for you, plans to prosper you and not to harm you, plans to give you hope and a future. Then you will call upon me and come and pray to me, and I will listen to you.

You will seek me and find me when you seek me with all your heart. I will be found by you. Call to me and I will answer you and show you great and unsearchable things which you do not know. I have told you this so that my joy may be in you and that your joy may be complete.

I am leaving you with a gift - peace of mind and heart. And the peace I give is a gift the world cannot give. So don't be troubled or afraid. What I have said, that will I bring about; what I have planned, that will I do.

I am going to prepare a place for you. And if I go and prepare a place for you, I will come back and take you to be with me that you also may be where I am.

Listen, I tell you a mystery: You will not all sleep, but you will all be changed - in a flash, in the twinkling of an eye, at the last trumpet. For the trumpet will sound, the dead will be raised imperishable, and you will be changed. See, I have placed before you an open door that no one can shut.

Since you have kept my command to endure patiently, I will also keep you from the hour of trial that is going to come upon the whole world to test those who live on the earth. Yes, I am coming soon. Come away, my beloved.

(Song of Solomon 8:14 Psalm 46:10 Proverbs 4:20-22 Proverbs 8:34 Isaiah 41:10 Jeremiah 29:11-14 Jeremiah 33:3 John 15:11 John 14:27 NLT Isaiah 46:11 John 14:2-3 1 Corinthians 15:51-52 Revelation 3:8 Revelation 3:10 Revelation 22:20 Song of Solomon 8:14)

MY WORDSTOTHELORD

Show me your ways, O Lord, teach me your paths. (Psalm 25:4)

My heart says of you, "Seek his face!" Your face, Lord, I will seek. (Psalm 27:8)

Teach me your way, O Lord; led me in a straight path. (Psalm 27:11)

According to your love remember me, for you are good, O Lord. (Psalm 25:7)

Those who know your name will trust in you, for you, Lord, have never forsaken those who seek you. (Psalm 9:10)

You make me glad by your deeds, O Lord; I sing for joy at the works of your hands. How great are your thoughts! (Psalm 92:4)

I will say of the Lord, "He is my refuge and my fortress, my God, in whom I trust. (Psalm 91:2)

I will stand at my watch and station myself on the ramparts; I will look to see what he will say to me. (Habakkuk 2:1)

The Sovereign Lord has given me an instructed tongue, to know the word that sustains the weary. He wakens me morning by morning, wakens my ear to listen like one being taught. (Isaiah 50:4)

Thou wilt keep him in perfect peace whose mind is stayed on Thee because he trusts in Thee. (Isaiah 26:3 KJV)

One thing I ask of the Lord, this is what I seek; that I may dwell in the house of the Lord all the days of my live, to gaze upon the beauty of the Lord, and to seek him in his temple. (Psalm 27:4)

Surely goodness and love will follow me all the days of my life, and I will dwell in the house of the Lord forever. (Psalm 23:6)

AGE-AGES

We do, however, speak a message of wisdom among the mature, but not the wisdom of this age or of the rulers of this age, who are coming to nothing. No, we speak of God's secret wisdom, a wisdom that has been hidden and that God destined for our glory before time began. - 1 Corinthians 2:6-7

"I tell you the truth," Jesus replied, "no one who has left home or brothers or sisters or mother or father or children or fields for me and the gospel will fail to receive a hundred times as much in this present age...and in the age to come, eternal life. But many who are first will be last, and the last first." - Mark 10:29-31

The Greek noun *aion* here translated "age" has various connotations: *a period of time* (e.g. the Mosaic age, the Church age) and, in certain contexts, *eternity or forever*. It is also translated "world" (Luke 16:8, Romans 12:2). (From New Scofield Study Bible NIV, page 1273 note on Mark 10:30)

The master commended the dishonest manager because he had acted shrewdly. For the people of this world [age] are more shrewd in dealing with their own kind than are the people of the light. - Luke 16:8

Do not conform any longer to the pattern of this world [age], but be transformed by the renewing of your mind. - Romans 12:2

Now to him who is able to establish you by my gospel and the proclamation of Jesus Christ, according to the revelation of the mystery hidden for long ages past [Lit. kept in silence through times eternal], but now revealed and made known through the prophetic writings by the command of the eternal God, so that all nations might believe and obey him - to the only wise God be glory forever through Jesus Christ! Amen! - Romans 16:25-27

None of the rulers of this age understood it, for if they had, they would not have crucified the Lord of glory. - 1 Corinthians 2:8

And God raised us up with Christ and seated us with him in the heavenly realms in Christ Jesus, in order that in the coming ages he might show the incomparable riches of his grace, expressed in his kindness to us in Christ Jesus. - Ephesians 2:6-7

(The mystery of Christ) which in other ages was not made known unto the sons of men, as it is now revealed unto his holy apostles and prophets by the Spirit: that the Gentiles should be fellow heirs, and of the same body, and partakers of his promise in Christ by the gospel. - Ephesians 3:4-6 KJV

Unto him be glory in the church by Christ Jesus throughout all ages, world without end. Amen. - Ephesians 3:21 KJV

The mystery that has been kept hidden for ages and generations, but is now disclosed to the saints. To them God has chosen to make known among the Gentiles the glorious riches of this mystery, which is Christ in you, the hope of glory. - Colossians 1:26

In these last days he has spoken to us by his Son, whom he appointed heir of all things, and through whom he made the universe [Lit. ages]. - Hebrews 1:2

Who have tasted the goodness of the word of God and the powers of the coming age. - Hebrews 6:5 NIV

They found out how good God's word is, and they received the powers of his new world. - Hebrews 6:5 NCV

And have felt how good the Word of God is and the mighty powers of the age and world to come. - Hebrews 6:5 AMP

By faith we understand that the universe [lit. ages were planned] was formed at God's command, so that what is seen was not made out of what was visible. - Hebrews 11:3

END OF THE AGE

But as for you, go your way to the end; then you will enter into rest and rise again for your allotted portion at the end of the age. - Daniel 12:13

The harvest is the end of the age, and the harvesters are angels. - Matthew 13:39

As the weeds are pulled up and burned in the fire, so it will be at the end of the age.
- Matthew 13:40

This is how it will be at the end of the age. The angels will come and separate the wicked from the righteous and throw them into the fiery furnace, where there will be weeping and gnashing of teeth. - Matthew 13:49

As Jesus was sitting on the Mount of Olives, the disciples came to him privately. "Tell us," they said, 'when will this happen, and what will be the sign of your coming and of the end of the age?" - Matthew 24:3

And surely I am with you always, to the very end of the age. - Matthew 28:20

But now, once for all time, he has appeared at the end of the age to remove sin by his own death as a sacrifice. - Hebrews 9:26

Whom God in His power is guarding through faith for a salvation that even now stands ready for unveiling at the end of the age. - 1 Peter 1:5

AGREEMENT

Amos 3:3

Do two walk together unless they have agreed to do so?

Matthew 5:25 KJV

Agree with thine adversary quickly, while thou art in the way with him.

Matthew 5:25 NIV

Settle matters quickly with your adversary who is taking you to court.

Matthew 18:19-20

If two of you on earth agree about anything you ask for, it will be done for you by my Father in heaven. For where two or three come together in my name, there am I with them.

Matthew 20:13

But he answered one of them, "Friend, I am not being unfair to you. Didn't you agree to work for a denarius?

Mark 14:56

Many testified falsely against him, but their statements did not agree.

Acts 5:9

Peter said to her, "How could you agree to test the Spirit of the Lord?"

2 Corinthians 6:16

What agreement is there between the temple of God and idols?

1 John 5:8

For there are three that testify: the Spirit, the water and the blood; and the three are in agreement.

ANOINTED

Exodus 30:23-29

Then the Lord said to Moses, "Take the following fine spices: 500 shekels of liquid myrrh, half as much (that is, 250 shekels) of fragrant cinnamon, 250 shekels of fragrant cane, 500 shekels of cassia - all according to the sanctuary shekel - and a hin of olive oil. Make these into a sacred anointing oil, a fragrant blend, the work of a perfumer. It will be the sacred anointing oil. Then use it to anoint the Tent of Meeting, the ark of the Testimony, the table and all its articles, the lampstand and its accessories, the altar of incense, the altar of burnt offering and all its utensils, and the basin with its stand. You shall consecrate them so they will be most holy, and whatever touches them will be holy."

Exodus 30:30-32

"Anoint Aaron and his sons and consecrate them so they may serve me as priests. Say to the Israelites, 'This is to be my sacred anointing oil for the generations to come. Do not pour it on men's bodies and do not make any oil with the same formula. It is sacred, and you are to consider it sacred.'"

Exodus 40:12-15

Bring Aaron and his sons to the entrance to the Tent of Meeting and wash them with water. Then dress Aaron in the sacred garments, anoint him and consecrate him so he may serve me as priest. Bring his sons and dress them in tunics. Anoint them just as you anointed their father, so they may serve me as priests. Their anointing will be to a priesthood that will continue for all generations to come.

Leviticus 8:10-12

Then Moses took the anointing oil and anointed the tabernacle and everything in it, and so consecrated them. He sprinkled some of the oil on the altar seven times, anointing the altar and all its utensils and the basin with its stand, to consecrate them. He poured some of the anointing oil on Aaron's head and anointed him to consecrate him.

Psalm 23:5

You prepare a table before me in the presence of my enemies. You anoint my head with oil; my cup overflows.

Psalm 45:6-7

Your throne, O God, will last for ever and ever; a scepter of justice will be the scepter of your kingdom. You love righteousness and hate wickedness; therefore God, your God, has set you above your companions by anointing you with the oil of joy.

Psalm 2:2

The kings of the earth take their stand and the rulers gather together against the Lord and against his Anointed One.

Psalm 23:5

You prepare a table before me in the presence of my enemies. You anoint my head with oil; my cup overflows.

Psalm 45:6-7

Your throne, O God, will last for ever and ever; a scepter of justice will be the scepter of your kingdom. You love righteousness and hate wickedness; therefore God, your God, has set you above your companions by anointing you with the oil of joy.

Isaiah 61:1, 3

The Spirit of the Sovereign Lord is on me, because the Lord has anointed me ...to bestow on them a crown of beauty instead of ashes, the oil of gladness instead of mourning, and a garment of praise instead of a spirit of despair.

Acts 10:38

You know... how God anointed Jesus of Nazareth with the Holy Spirit and power.

Hebrews 1:9

You (Son) have loved righteousness and hated wickedness; therefore God, your God, has set you above your companions by anointing you with the oil of joy.

1 John 2:20

But you have an anointing from the Holy One, and all of you know the truth.

1 John 1:27

As for you, the anointing you received from him remains in you, and you do not need anyone to teach you. But as his anointing teaches you about all things, and as that anointing is real, not counterfeit - just as it has taught you, remain in him.

ARK OF THE COVENANT

Exodus 16:33-34

Moses said to Aaron, "Take a jar and put an omer of manna in it. Then place it before the Lord to be kept for the generations to come." As the Lord commanded Moses, Aaron put the manna in front of the Testimony, that it might be kept.

Exodus 25:10-22

Have them make a chest of acacia wood...overlay it with pure gold, cast four gold rings for it and fasten them to its four feet with two rings on one side and two rings on the other side...insert the poles into the rings on the sides of the chest to carry it...then put in the ark the Testimony, which I will give you.

Make an atonement cover of pure gold...and make two cherubim out of hammered gold at the ends of the cover...the cherubim are to have their wings spread upward, overshadowing the cover with them...the cherubim are to face each other, looking toward the cover...place the cover on top of the ark and put in the ark the Testimony, which I will give you.

There, above the cover between the two cherubim that are over the ark of the Testimony, I will meet with you and give you all my commands for the Israelites.

Exodus 26:31, 33

Make a curtain of blue, purple and scarlet yarn...Hang the curtain with gold hooks... from the clasps and place the ark of the Testimony behind the curtain. The curtain will separate the Holy Place from the Most Holy Place.

Exodus 40:20-21

He [Moses] took the Testimony and placed it in the ark, attached the poles to the ark and put the atonement cover over it. Then he brought the ark into the tabernacle and hung the shielding curtain and shielded the ark of the Testimony as the Lord commanded him.

Exodus 40:34

Then the cloud covered the Tent of Meeting, and the glory of the Lord filled the tabernacle. Moses could not enter the Tent of Meeting because the cloud had settled upon it, and the glory of the Lord filled the tabernacle.

Leviticus 16:1-

The Lord spoke to Moses... "Tell your brother Aaron not to come whenever he chooses into the Most Holy Place behind the curtain in front of the atonement cover on the ark, or else he will die, because I appear in the cloud over the atonement cover."

Numbers 10:33

So they set out from the mountain of the Lord and traveled for three days. The ark of the covenant of the Lord went before them during those three days to find them a place to rest. The cloud of the Lord was over them by day when they set out from the camp.

2 Chronicles 1:4

Now David had brought up the ark of God from Kiriath Jearim to the place he had prepared for it, because he had pitched a tent for it in Jerusalem.

2 Chronicles 5:2-10

Then Solomon summoned to Jerusalem the elders of Israel, all the heads of the tribes and the chiefs of the Israelite families, to bring up the ark of the Lord's covenant from Zion, the City of David... The Levites took up the ark, and they brought up the ark and the Tent of Meeting and all the sacred furnishings in it...The priests then brought the ark of the Lord's covenant to its place in the inner sanctuary of the temple, the Most Holy Place, and put it beneath the wings of the cherubim. The cherubim spread their wings over the place of the ark and covered the ark and its carrying poles... there was nothing in the ark except the two tablets that Moses had placed in it at Horeb, where the Lord made a covenant with the Israelites after they came out of Egypt.

Hebrews 9:1-2

Now the first covenant had regulations for worship and also an earthly sanctuary. A tabernacle was set up. In its first room were the lampstand, the table and the consecrated bread; this was called the Holy Place.

Hebrews 9:3-5

Behind the second curtain was a room called the Most Holy Place, which had the golden alter of incense and the gold-covered ark of the covenant. This ark contained the gold jar of manna, Aaron's staff that had budded, and the stone tablets of the covenant. Above the ark were the cherubim of the Glory, overshadowing the atonement cover.

Revelation 11:15, 16, 19

The seventh angel sounded his trumpet, and there were loud voices in heaven...And the twenty-four elders, who were seated on their thrones before God, fell on their faces and worshiped God...Then God's temple in heaven was opened, and within his temple was seen the ark of his covenant.

BEAUTIFUL

Ecclesiastes 3:11

He has made everything beautiful in its time.

Psalm 27:4

One thing I ask of the Lord, this is what I seek, that I may dwell in the house of the Lord all the days of my life, to gaze upon the beauty of the Lord and to seek him in his temple.

Isaiah 4:2

In that day the Branch of the Lord will be beautiful and glorious, and the fruit of the land will be the pride and glory of the survivors in Israel. Those who are left in Zion, who remain in Jerusalem, will be called holy, all who are recorded among the living in Jerusalem.

Isaiah 33:17

Your eyes will see the king in his beauty and view a land that stretches afar.

Isaiah 52:7

How beautiful on the mountains are the feet of those who bring good news, who proclaim peace, who bring good tidings, who proclaim salvation, who say to Zion, "Your God reigns!"

Isaiah 53:2

He had no beauty or majesty to attract us to him, nothing in his appearance that we should desire him.

Isaiah 61:3

(He has sent me) to bestow on them a crown of beauty instead of ashes.

Ezekiel 20:6

On that day I swore to them that I would bring them out of Egypt into a land I had searched out for them, a land flowing with milk and honey, the most beautiful of all lands.

Ezekiel 28:12

You were the model of perfection, full of wisdom and perfect in beauty. You were in Eden, the garden of God.

Matthew 23:27-29

Woe to you, teachers of the law and Pharisees, you hypocrites! You are like whitewashed tombs, which look beautiful on the outside but on the inside are full of

dead men's bones and everything unclean. In the same way, on the outside you appear to people as righteous but on the inside you are full of hypocrisy and wickedness.

Matthew 26:10

Jesus said to them, "Why are you bothering this woman? She has done a beautiful thing to me. The poor you will always have with you, but you will not always have me.

Romans 10:15

As it is written: "How beautiful are the feet of those who bring good news!"

1 Peter 3:3-5

Your beauty should not come from outward adornment, such as braided hair and the wearing of gold jewelry and fine clothes. Instead, it should be that of your inner self, the unfading beauty of a gentle and quiet spirit, which is of great worth in God's sight. For this is the way the holy women of the past who put their hope in God used to make themselves beautiful.

BEFORE

Exodus 13:21-22

By day the Lord went ahead of (before) them in a pillar of cloud to guide them on their way and by night in a pillar of fire to give them light so that they could travel by day or night. Neither the pillar of cloud by day nor the pillar of fire by night left its place in front of (before) the people.

Exodus 14:19-20

Then the angel of God, who had been traveling in front of (before) Israel's army, withdrew and went behind them. The pillar of cloud also moved from in front (before) and stood behind them, coming between the armies of Egypt and Israel.

Deuteronomy 31:3

The Lord your God himself will cross over ahead of you (before you).

Judges 4:14

Then Deborah said to Barak, "Go! This is the day the Lord has given Sisera into your hands. Has not the Lord gone ahead of you (before you)?"

1 Chronicles 14:15

As soon as you hear the sound of marching in the tops of the balsam trees, move out to battle, because that will mean God has gone out in front of you (before you) to strike the Philistine army.

Isaiah 45:2

I will go before you and will level the mountains.

Isaiah 52:12

For the Lord will go before you, the God of Israel will be your rear guard.

Isaiah 58:8

Then your light will break forth like the dawn, and your healing will quickly appear; then your righteousness will go before you, and the glory of the Lord will be your rear guard.

Micah 2:13

One who breaks open the way will go up before them; they will break through the gate and go out. Their king will pass through before them, the Lord at their head.

BLINDNESS HEALED BY CHRIST

Psalm 146:8

The Lord gives sight to the blind.

Matthew 9:27-30

Two blind men followed him calling out, "Have mercy on us, Son of David!"

When he had gone indoors, the blind men came to him, and he asked them, "Do you believe that I am able to do this?"

"Yes, Lord," they replied.

Then he touched their eyes and said, "According to your faith will it be done to you"; and their sight was restored.

Matthew 12:22

Then they brought him a demon-possessed man who was blind and mute, and Jesus healed him, so that he could both talk and see.

Matthew 20:29-34

As he went along, he saw a man blind from birth... He spit on the ground, made some mud with the saliva, and put it on the man's eyes. "Go," he told him, "wash in the Pool of Siloam." So the man went and washed, and came home seeing. - John 9:1, 6-7

Mark 8:23-25

He took the blind man by the hand and led him outside the village. When he had spit on the man's eyes and put his hands on him, Jesus asked, "Do you see anything?" He looked up and said "I see people; they look like trees walking around."

Once more Jesus put his hands on the man's eyes. Then his eyes were opened, his sight was restored, and he saw everything clearly.

Mark 10:46-47, 51-52

A blind man, Bartimaeas, was sitting by the roadside begging. When he heard that it was Jesus of Nazareth, he began to shout, "Jesus, Son of David, have mercy on Me!"

"What do you want me to do for you?" Jesus asked him.

The blind man said, "Rabbi, I want to see."

"Go," said Jesus, "your faith has healed you." Immediately he received his sight and followed Jesus along the road.

Luke 7:21

At that very time Jesus cured many who had diseases, sicknesses and evil spirits, and gave sight to many who were blind.

John 9:1-3, 6-7

As he went along, he saw a man blind from birth. His disciples asked him, "Rabbi, who sinned, this man or his parents, that he was born blind?"

"Neither this man nor his parents sinned," said Jesus, "but this happened so that the works of God might be displayed in him."

After saying this, he spit on the ground, made some mud with the saliva, and put it on the man's eyes. "Go," he told him, "wash in the Pool of Siloam." So the man went and washed, and came home seeing.

BOUNDARYLINES

Exodus 23:31

I will establish your borders from the Red Sea to the Sea of the Philistines, and from the desert to the River.

Exodus 34:24

I will drive out nations before you and enlarge your territory, and no one will covet your land when you go up three times each year to appear before the Lord your God.

Deuteronomy 19:14

Do not move your neighbor's boundary stone set up by your predecessors in the inheritance you receive in the land the Lord your God is giving you to possess.

Deuteronomy 32:8

When the Most High gave the nations their inheritance, when he divided all mankind, he set up boundaries for the peoples according to the number of the sons of Israel.

Joshua 19:51

These are the territories that Eleazar the priest, Joshua son of Nun and the heads of the tribal clans of Israel assigned by lot at Shiloh in the presence of the Lord at the entrance to the Tent of Meeting. And so they finished dividing the land.

Nehemiah 9:2

Those of Israelite descent had separated themselves from all foreigners.

Job 12:23

He makes nations great, and destroys them; he enlarges nations, and disperses them.

Psalm 16:5-6

Lord, you have assigned me my portion and my cup; you have made my lot secure. The boundary lines have fallen for me in pleasant places, surely I have a delightful inheritance.

Psalm 74:17

It was you who set all the boundaries of the earth; you made both summer and winter.

Psalm 78:55

He drove out nations before them and allotted their lands to them as an inheritance.

Psalm 104:7-9

But at your rebuke the waters fled, at the sound of your thunder they took to flight, they flowed over the mountains, they went down into the valleys, to the place you assigned for them. You set a boundary they cannot cross; never again will they cover the earth.

Proverbs 8:23, 29

I was appointed from eternity, from the beginning, before the world began...When he gave the sea its boundary so the waters would not overstep his command, and when he marked out the foundations of the earth.

Proverbs 15:25

The Lord tears down the proud man's house but he keeps the widow's boundaries intact.

Proverbs 22:28

Do not move an ancient boundary stone set up by your forefathers.

Proverbs 23:10

Do not move the ancient boundary stone or encroach on the fields of the fatherless, for their Defender is strong; he will take up their case against you.

Daniel 4:35

All the peoples of the earth are regarded as nothing. He does as he pleases with the powers of heaven and the peoples of the earth. No once can hold back his hand or say to him: "What have you done?"

Acts 17:26

From one man he made every nation of men, that they should inhabit the whole earth; and he determined the times set for them and the exact places where they should live.

BREATHOFGOD

The Lord God formed the man from the dust of the ground and breathed into his nostrils the breath of life, and the man became a living being. - Genesis 2:7

By the blast of your nostrils the waters piled up. The surging waters stood firm like a wall. - Exodus 15:8

As I have observed, those who plow evil and those who sow trouble reap it. At the breath of God they are destroyed; at the blast of his anger they perish. - Job 4:9

In his hand is the life of every creature and the breath of all mankind. - Job 12:10

He will not escape the darkness; a flame will wither his shoots, and the breath of God's mouth will carry him away. - Job 15:30

By his breath the skies became fair. - Job 26:13

As long as I have life with me, the breath of God in my nostrils, my lips will not speak wickedness, and my tongue will utter no deceit. - Job 27:3

It is the spirit in a man, the breath of the Almighty, that gives him understanding. - Job 32:8

The Spirit of God has made me; the breath of the Almighty gives me life. - Job 33:4

If it were his intention and he withdrew his spirit and breath, all mankind would perish together and man would return to the dust. - Job 34:14-15

The valleys of the sea were exposed and the foundations of the earth laid bare at your rebuke, O Lord, at the blast of breath from your nostrils. - Psalm 18:15

By the word of the Lord were the heavens made, their starry host by the breath of his mouth. - Psalm 33:6

When you take away their breath, they die and return to the dust. When you send your Spirit, they are created. - Psalm 104:29-30

With righteousness he will judge the needy, with justice he will give decisions for the poor of the earth. He will strike the earth with the rod of his mouth; with the breath of his lips he will slay the wicked. - Isaiah 11:4

Topeth has long been prepared; it has been made ready for the king. Its fire pit has been made deep and wide, with an abundance of fire and wood; the breath of the Lord, like a stream of burning sulfur, sets it ablaze. - Isaiah 30:33

The grass withers and the flowers fall, because the breath of the Lord blows on them. - Isaiah 40:7

This is what God the Lord says - he who created the heavens and stretched them out, who spread out the earth and all that comes out of it, who gives breath to its people, and life to those who walk on it. - Isaiah 42:5

This is what the Sovereign Lord says to these bones: I will make breath [can also mean wind or spirit] enter you, and you will come to life. - Ezekiel 37:5

Then he said to me, "Prophesy to the breath; prophesy, son of man, and say to it, 'This is what the Sovereign Lord says: Come from the four winds, O Breath, and breathe into these slain, that they may live.'" So I prophesied as he commanded me, and breath entered them; they came to life and stood up on their feet - a vast army. - Ezekiel 37:9-10

Jesus said, "Peace be with you! As the Father has sent me, I am sending you," And with that he breathed on them and said, "Receive the Holy Spirit." - John 20:21-22

The God who made the world and everything in it is the Lord of heaven and earth and does not live in temples built by hands. And he is not served by human hands, as if he needed anything, because he himself gives all men life and breath and everything else. - Acts 17:24-25

And then the lawless one will be revealed, whom the Lord Jesus will overthrow with the breath of his mouth and destroy by the splendor of his coming. - 2 Thessalonians 2:8

All Scripture is God-breathed and is useful for teaching, rebuking, correcting and training in righteousness, so that the man of God may be thoroughly equipped for every good work. - 2 Timothy 3:16-17

In his right hand he held seven stars, and out of his mouth came a sharp double-edged sword. - Revelation 1:16

Out of his mouth comes a sharp sword with which to strike down the nations. - Revelation 19:15

BYTHEWORDOFTHELORD

In the beginning God created the heavens and the earth. - Genesis 1:1

And God said, "Let there be light," and there was light. - Genesis 1:2

Thus the heavens and the earth were completed in all their vast array. - Genesis 2:1

By the word of the Lord were the heavens made, their starry host by the breath of his mouth. - Psalm 33:6

The sky was made at the Lord's command. By the breath from his mouth, he made all the stars. - Psalm 33:6 NCV

The Lord merely spoke, and the heavens were created. He breathed the word, and all the stars were born. - Psalm 33:6 NLT

For he spoke, and it came to be, he commanded, and it stood firm. - Psalm 33:9 NIV

He spoke, and it happened. He commanded, and it appeared. - Psalm 22:9 NCV

For when he spoke, the world began! It appeared at his command. - Psalm 33:9 NLT

Let them praise the name of the Lord, for he commanded and they were created. - Psalm 148:5

Through him all things were made, without him nothing was made that has been made. - John 1:3

For since the creation of the world God's invisible qualities - his eternal power and divine nature - have been clearly seen, being understood from what has been made, so that men are without excuse. - Romans 1:20

He [Abraham] is our father in the sight of God, in whom he believed - the God who gives life to the dead and calls things that are not as though they were. - Romans 4:17

Everything God created is good, and nothing is to be rejected if it is received with thanksgiving, because it is consecrated by the word of God and prayer. - 1 Timothy 4:4-5

In these last days he has spoken to us by his Son, whom he appointed heir of all things, and through whom he made the universe [Lit. ages]. - Hebrews 1:2

By faith we understand that the universe [lit. ages were planned] was formed at God's command, so that what is seen was not made out of what was visible. - Hebrews 11:3

But they deliberately forget that long ago by God's word the heavens existed and the earth was formed out of water and by water. By these waters also the world of that time was deluged and destroyed. By the same word the present heavens and earth are reserved for fire, being kept for the day of judgment and destruction of ungodly men. - 2 Peter 3:5-7

CHILDREN OF GOD

But to all who did accept him and believe in him he gave the right to become children of God. They did not become his children in any human way - by any human parents or human desire. They were born of God. - John 1:13 NCV

Jesus declared, "I tell you the truth, no one can see the kingdom of God unless he is born again." - John 3:3

Jesus answered, "I tell you the truth, no one can enter the kingdom of God unless he is born of water and the Spirit. Flesh gives birth to flesh, but the Spirit gives birth to spirit. You should not be surprised at my saying, 'You must be born again.'" John 3:5-7

Those who are led by the Spirit of God are sons of God... and by him we cry, "Abba, Father." The Spirit himself testifies with our spirit that we are God's children. - Romans 8:14-16

But when the time had fully come, God sent his Son, born of a woman, born under law, to redeem those under law, that we might receive the full rights of sons. - Galatians 4:5

Because you are sons, God sent the Spirit of his Son into our hearts, the Spirit who calls out, "Abba, Father." So you are no longer a slave, but a son; and since you are a son, God has made you also an heir. - Galatians 4:6-7

For he chose us in him before the creation of the world to be holy and blameless in his sight. In love he predestined us to be adopted as his sons through Jesus Christ, in accordance with his pleasure and will. - Ephesians 1:4-5

How great is the love the Father has lavished on us, that we should be called children of God! And that is what we are! - 1 John 3:1

Dear friends, now we are children of God, and what we will be has not yet been made known. - 1 John 3:2

Everyone who believes that Jesus is the Christ is born of God, and everyone who loves the father loves his child as well. - 1 John 5:1

Everyone born of God overcomes the world. 1 John 5:4

COMING OF OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST

Matthew 24:3

As Jesus was sitting on the Mount of Olives, the disciples came to him privately. "Tell us," they said, "when will this happen, and what will be the sign of your coming and of the end of the age?"

Matthew 24:27

For as lightning that comes from the east is visible even in the west, so will be the coming of the Son of Man.

Matthew 24:30

At that time the sign of the Son of Man will appear in the sky, and all the nations of the earth will mourn. They will see the Son of Man coming on the clouds of the sky, with power and great glory.

Matthew 24:37, 39, 42, 44

As it was in the days of Noah, so it will be at the coming of the Son of Man... That is how it will be at the coming of the Son of Man... Therefore keep watch because you do not know on what day your Lord will come... So you must be ready, because the Son of Man will come at an hour when you do not expect him.

Acts 1:11

"Men of Galilee," they said, "why do you stand here looking into the sky? This same Jesus, who has been taken from you into heaven, will come back in the same way you have seen him go into heaven."

1 Corinthians 15:22-23

For as in Adam all die, so in Christ all will be made alive. But each in his own turn: Christ, the firstfruits; then, when he comes, those who belong to him.

1 Thessalonians 2:19

For what is our hope, our joy, or the crown in which we will glory in the presence of our Lord Jesus when he comes? Is it not you? Indeed, you are our glory and joy.

1 Thessalonians 3:13

May he strengthen your hearts so that you will be blameless and holy in the presence of our God and Father when our Lord Jesus comes with all his holy ones.

1 Thessalonians 4:15

According to the Lord's own word, we tell you that we who are still alive, who are left till the coming of the Lord, will certainly not precede those who have fallen asleep.

1 Thessalonians 5:23-24

May God himself, the God of peace, sanctify you through and through. May your whole spirit, soul and body be kept blameless at the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ. The one who calls you is faithful and he will do it.

2 Thessalonians 2:1

Concerning the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ and our being gathered to him, we ask you, brothers, not to become easily unsettled or alarmed by some prophecy, report or letter supposed to have come from us, saying that the day of the Lord has already come.

James 5:7-8

Be patient, then, brothers, until the Lord's coming. See how the farmer waits for the land to yield its valuable crop and how patient he is for the autumn and spring rains. You too, be patient and stand firm, because the Lord's coming is near.

2 Peter 1:16

We did not follow cleverly invented stories when we told you about the power and coming of our Lord Jesus Christ, but we were eyewitnesses of his majesty.

2 Peter 3:4

They will say, "Where is this 'coming' he promised? Ever since our fathers died, everything goes on as it has since the beginning of creation. But they deliberately forget that long ago by God's word the heavens existed and the earth was formed out of water and by water. By these waters also the world of that time was deluged and destroyed. By the same word the present heavens and earth are reserved for fire, being kept for the day of judgment and destruction of ungodly men.

1 John 2:28

And now, dear children continue in him, so that when he appears we may be confident and unashamed before him at his coming.

Revelation 1:7

Look, he is coming with the clouds, and every eye will see him, even those who pierced him; and all the peoples of the earth will mourn because of him. So shall it be! Amen.

Revelation 2:25

Only hold on to what you have until I come.

Revelation 3:11

I am coming soon. Hold on to what you have, so that no one will take your crown.

COMMITTED

2 Chronicles 16:9

The eyes of the Lord range throughout the earth to strengthen those whose hearts are fully committed to him.

You ask Me if your heart is fully committed to Me. It is in the "fully range." Imagine a line that goes from left to right and goes from not committed through varying degrees to fully committed. At the fully committed end on the right end there is a range of those fully committed. It ranges from "mostly fully committed" to "completely fully committed." You are in that range. I'll not say where, but you are in that range.

Not committed.......partly committed......fully committed

1 Kings 8:61

May your hearts be fully committed to the Lord our God, to live by his decrees and obey his commands, as at this time.

Psalm 37:5

Commit your way to the Lord; trust in him and he will do this: He will make your righteousness shine like the dawn and the justice of your cause like the noonday sun.

Acts 20:32

Now I commit you to God and to the word of his grace, which can build you up and give you an inheritance among all those who are sanctified.

2 Timothy 1:12 KJV

I know whom I have believed, and am persuaded that he is able to keep that which I have committed unto him against that day.

2 Timothy 2:2 KJV

And the things that thou hast heard of me among many witnesses, the same commit thou to faithful men, who shall be able to teach others also.

Titus 2:14 NLT

He gave his life to free us from every kind of sin, to cleanse us, and to make us his very own people, totally committed to doing good deeds.

1 Peter 4:19

So then, those who suffer according to God's will should commit themselves to their faithful Creator and continue to do good.

CONFORM-CONFORMED

Romans 8:29-30

For those God foreknew he also predestined to be conformed to the likeness of his Son, that he might be the firstborn among many brothers. And those he predestined, he also called; those he called, he also justified; those he justified, he also glorified.

Romans 12:2

Do not conform any longer to the pattern of this world, but be transformed by the renewing of your mind. Then you will be able to test and approve what God's will is - his good, pleasing and perfect will.

1 Peter 1:14-15

As obedient children, do not conform to the evil desires you had when you lived in ignorance. But just as he who called you is holy, so be holy in all you do, for it is written: "Be holy, because I am holy."

CROSSED OVER FROM DEATH TO LIFE

I tell you the truth, whoever hears my word and believes him who sent me has eternal life and will not be condemned; he has crossed over from death to life. - John 5:24 NIV

~~~~~

#### Matthew 25:46

Then they will go away to eternal punishment, but the righteous to eternal life.

#### John 3:18

Whoever believes in him is not condemned, but whoever does not believe stands condemned already because he has not believed in the name of God's one and only Son.

#### John 6:47

I tell you the truth, he who believes has everlasting life.

# John 6:50-51

Here is the bread that comes down from heaven, which a man may eat and not die. I am the living bread that came down from heaven. If anyone eats of this bread, he will live forever. This bread is my flesh, which I will give for the life of the world.

#### John 6:58

This is the bread that came down from heaven. Your forefathers ate manna and died, but he who feeds on this bread will live forever.

#### John 8:51

I tell you the truth, if anyone keeps my word, he will never see death.

#### John 11:26

Jesus said to her, "I am the resurrection and the life. He who believes in me will live, even though he dies; and whoever lives and believes in me will never die."

#### John 20:31

But these are written that you may believe that Jesus is the Christ, the Son of God, and that by believing you may have life in his name.

## 1 John 3:14

We know that we have passed from death to life, because we love our brothers. Anyone who does not love remains in death.

#### 1 John 5:13

I write these things to you who believe in the name of the Son of God so that you may know that you have eternal life.

----

The phrase "crossed over from death to life" means: To change my place, leave, depart, remove, pass over

----

# John 5:24 NLT

I tell you the truth, those who listen to my message and believe in God who sent me have eternal life. They will never be condemned for their sins, but they have already passed from death to life.

#### John 5:24 NCV

I tell you the truth, whoever hears what I say and believes in the One who sent me has eternal life. That person will not be judged guilty but has already left death and entered life.

# John 5:24 AMP

I assure you, most solemnly I tell you, the person whose ears are open to My words [who listens to My message] and believes and trusts in and clings to and relies on Him Who sent Me has (possesses now) eternal life. And he does not come into judgment [does not incur sentence of judgment, will not come under condemnation], but he has already passed over out of death into life.

#### John 5:24 RSV

Truly, truly, I say to you, he who hears my word and believes him who sent me, has eternal life; he does not come into judgment, but has passed from death to life.

# John 5:24 MSG

It's urgent that you listen carefully to this: Anyone here who believes what I am saying right now and aligns himself with the Father, who has in fact put me in charge, has at this very moment the real, lasting life and is no longer condemned to be an outsider. This person has taken a giant step from the world of the dead to the world of the living.

# CUP

# **Psalm 23:5**

You prepare a table before me in the presence of my enemies. You anoint my head with oil; my cup overflows.

# **Psalm 16:5**

Lord, you have assigned me my portion and my cup; you have made my lot secure.

#### **Matthew 20:22**

"You don't know what you are asking," Jesus said the them. "Can you drink the cup I am going to drink?"

#### Matthew 23:25

Woe to you, teachers of the law and Pharisees, you hypocrites! You clean the outside of the cup and dish, but inside they are full of greed and self-indulgence.

#### Matthew 26:39

Going a little farther, he fell with his face to the ground and prayed, "My Father, if it is possible, may this cup be taken from me.

# John 18:11

Jesus commanded Peter, "Put your sword away! Shall I not drink the cup the Father has given me?"

## Luke 22:20

In the same way, after the supper he took the cup, saying, "This cup is the new covenant in my blood, which is poured out for you."

# 1 Corinthians 10:16

Is not the cup of thanksgiving for which we give thanks a participation in the blood of Christ?

# DAYOFREDEMPTION

# **Ephesians 4:30**

Do not grieve the Holy Spirit of God, with whom you were sealed for the day of redemption.

# Luke 21:28

When these things begin to take place, stand up and lift up your heads, because your redemption is drawing near.

# **Ephesians 1:13-14**

Having believed, you were marked in him with a seal, the promised Holy Spirit, who is a deposit guaranteeing our inheritance until the redemption of those who are God's possession.

# **Romans 8:23**

We ourselves, who have the firstfruits of the Spirit, groan inwardly as we wait eagerly for our adoption as sons, the redemption of our bodies.

# Philippians 1:6

Being confident of this, that he who began a good work in you will carry it on to completion until the day of Christ Jesus.

# Colossians 1:14

In whom (the Son) we have redemption, the forgiveness of sins.

# DEEP THINGS

# OF THE EARTH

#### Genesis 7:11-12

In the six hundredth year of Noah's life, on the seventeenth day of the second month - on that day all the springs of the great deep burst forth, and the floodgates of the heavens were opened. And rain fell on the earth forty days and forty nights.

#### Isaiah 51:3

Was it not you who dried up the sea, the waters of the great deep, who made a road in the depths of the sea so that the redeemed might cross over?

# Psalm 104:6 RSV

Thou didst set the earth on its foundations, so that it should never be shaken. Thou didst cover it with the deep as with a garment.

#### Proverbs 8:27-28 RSV

When he established the heavens, I was there, when he drew a circle on the face of the deep, when he made firm the skies above, when he established the fountains of the deep.

#### Luke 5:4 RSV

And when he had ceased speaking, he said to Simon, "Put out into the deep, and let down your nets for a catch."

#### OF THE KINGDOM

# **Matthew 13:11**

The knowledge of the secrets of the kingdom of heaven has been given to you, but not to them.

#### Mark 4:10-11

When he was alone, the Twelve and the others around him asked him about the parables. He told them, "The secret of the kingdom of God has been given to you. But to those on the outside everything is said in parables.

OF GOD

1 Corinthians 2:10

The Spirit searches all things, even the deep things of God. For who among men knows the thoughts of a man except the man's spirit within him? In the same way no one knows the thoughts of God except the Spirit of God.

#### Micah 4:12

But they do not know the thoughts of the Lord; they do not understand his plan, he who gathers them like sheaves to the threshing floor.

#### Job 11:7-9 RSV

Can you find out the deep things of God? Can you find out the limit of the Almighty? It is higher than heaven - what can you do? Deeper than Sheol - what can you know? Its measure is longer than the earth, and broader than the sea.

## Psalm 92:5 RSV

How great are thy works, O Lord! Thy thoughts are very deep.

# **Daniel 2:20, 22 RSV**

Blessed be the name of God for ever and ever... he reveals deep and mysterious things.

# OF THE FAITH

# 1 **Timothy 3:9**

They must keep hold of the deep truths of the faith with a clear conscience.

# Psalm 42:7 RSV

Deep calls to deep at the thunder of thy cataracts; all thy waves and thy billows have gone over me.

# OF SATAN

# Revelation 2:24-25 RSV

But to the rest of you in Thyatira, who do not hold this teaching, who have not learned what some call the deep things of Satan, to you I say, I do not lay upon you any other burden; only hold fast what you have, until I come.

# DIRECTS YOUR PATHS

# **Psalm 17:5**

My steps have held to your paths; my feet have not slipped.

### **Psalm 18:36**

You broaden the path beneath me, so that my ankles do not turn.

### Psalm 37:23

If the Lord delights in a man's way, he makes his steps firm.

### Psalm 119:35

Direct me in the path of your commands, for there I find delight.

## Psalm 119:128

Because I consider all your precepts right, I hate every wrong path.

### Psalm 119:133

Direct my footsteps according to your word.

### Proverbs 3:5-6

Trust in the Lord with all your heart and lean not on your own understanding; in all your ways acknowledge him, and he will direct your paths.

# Proverbs 16:9

In his heart a man plans his course, but the Lord determines his steps.

# Proverbs 20:24

A man's steps are directed by the Lord. How then can anyone understand his own way?

### **Isaiah 30:21**

Whether you turn to the right or to the left, your ears will hear a voice behind you, saying, "This is the way; walk in it."

### **Isaiah 45:13**

I will raise up Cyrus in my righteousness; I will make all his ways straight.

### **Isaiah 48:17**

This is what the Lord says - your Redeemer, the Holy One of Israel: "I am the Lord your God, who teaches you what is best for you, who directs you in the way you should go."

# Jeremiah 10:23

I know, O Lord, that a man's life is not his own; it is not for man to direct his steps.

# 2 Thessalonians 3:5

May the Lord direct your hearts into God's love and Christ's perseverance.

# DIVINERADIANCE

# **Exodus 40:34**

Then the cloud covered the Tent of Meeting, and the glory of the Lord filled the tabernacle. Moses could not enter the Tent of Meeting because the cloud had settled upon it, and the glory of the Lord filled the tabernacle.

### **Psalm 34:5**

Those who look to him are radiant; their faces are never covered with shame.

# Proverbs 4:18

But the path of the righteous is like the first gleam of dawn, shining ever brighter till the full light of day.

## Daniel 10:6

I looked up and there before me was a man dressed in linen, with a belt of the finest gold around his waist. His body was like chrysolite, his face like lightning, his eyes like flaming torches, his arms and legs like the gleam of burnished bronze, and his voice like the sound of a multitude.

#### Daniel 12:3

Those who are wise will shine like the brightness of the heavens, and those who lead many to righteousness, like the stars for ever and ever.

#### Matthew 17:2

There he was transfigured before them. His face shone like the sun, and his clothes became as white as the light.

### **Matthew 28:2-3**

There was a violent earthquake, for an angel of the Lord came down from heaven and, going to the tomb, rolled back the stone and sat on it. His appearance was like lightning, and his clothes were white as snow.

### Luke 2:8-9

And there were shepherds living out in the fields nearby, keeping watch over their flocks at night. An angel of the Lord appeared to them, and the glory of the Lord shone around them, and they were terrified.

### Acts 26:13

About noon, O king, as I was on the road, I saw a light from heaven, brighter than the sun, blazing around me and my companions.

### 1 Corinthians 2:7

We speak of God's secret wisdom, a wisdom that has been hidden and that God destined for our glory before time began.

# 2 Corinthians 3:18

And we, who with unveiled faces all reflect the Lord's glory, are being transformed into his likeness with ever-increasing glory, which comes from the Lord, who is the Spirit.

# **Ephesians 5:27**

Just as Christ loved the church and gave himself up for her to make her holy, cleansing her by the washing with water through the word, and to present her to himself as a radiant church, without stain or wrinkle or any other blemish, but holy and blameless.

### Hebrews 1:3

The Son is the radiance of God's glory and the exact representation of his being, sustaining all things by his powerful word.

### Revelation 1:16

In his [Jesus'] right hand he held seven stars, and coming out of his mouth was a sharp, double-edged sword. His face was like the sun shining in all its brilliance.

### Revelation 21:9-11

One of the seven angels who had the seven bowls full of the seven last plagues came and said to me, "Cone, I will show you the bride, the wife of the Lamb." And he carried me away in the Spirit to a mountain great and high, and showed me the Holy City, Jerusalem, coming down out of heaven from God. It shone with the glory of God, and its brilliance was like that of a very precious jewel, like a jasper, clear as crystal.

# ELECTION

# Romans 9:11

Yet, before the twins were born or had done anything good or bad—in order that God's purpose in election might stand.

### **Romans 11:5**

So too, at the present time there is a remnant chosen by grace.

### 1 Thessalonians 1:4

For we know, brothers loved by God, that he has chosen you,

# 2 Peter 1:10

Therefore, my brothers, be all the more eager to make your calling and election sure. For if you do these things, you will never fall.

# Mark 13:20

If the Lord had not cut short those days, no one would survive. But for the sake of the elect, whom he has chosen, he has shortened them.

# **Luke 18:7**

And will not God bring about justice for his chosen ones, who cry out to him day and night? Will he keep putting them off?

### **Romans 8:29**

For those God foreknew he also predestined to be conformed to the likeness of his Son, that he might be the firstborn among many brothers.

### 1 Corinthians 1:27

But God chose the foolish things of the world to shame the wise; God chose the weak things of the world to shame the strong.

# FACE

# **Genesis 32:30**

So Jacob called the place Peniel, saying, "It is because I saw God face to face, and yet my life was spared."

# Numbers 6:24-26

The Lord bless you and keep you; the Lord make his face shine on you and be gracious to you; the Lord turn his face toward you and give you peace.

# 1 Chronicles 16:11

Look to the Lord and his strength; seek his face always.

# 2 Chronicles 7:14

If my people, who are called by my name, will humble themselves and pray and seek my face and turn from their wicked ways, then I will hear from heaven, and I will forgive their sin and will heal their land.

### **Psalm 4:6**

Many, Lord, are asking "Who will bring us prosperity?" Let the light of your face shine on us.

#### **Psalm 24:6**

Such is the generation of those who seek him, who seek your face, God of Jacob.

## Psalm 27:8-9

My heart says of you, "Seek his face!" Your face, Lord, I will seek. Do not hide your face from me.

# **Psalm 31:16**

Let your face shine on your servant; save me in your unfailing love.

## Psalm 34:15-16

For the eyes of the Lord are on the righteous and his ears are attentive to their prayer, but the face of the Lord is against those who do evil, to blot out their name from the earth.

# **Psalm 44:3**

It was not by their sword that they won the land, nor did their arm bring them victory; it was your right hand, your arm, and the light of your face, for you loved them.

### **Psalm 67:1**

May God be gracious to us and bless us and make his face shine on us.

### **Psalm 80:3**

Restore us, O God; make your face shine on us, that we may be saved.

# Psalm 105:4

Look to the Lord and his strength; seek his face always.

### Psalm 119:135

Make your face shine on your servant and teach me your decrees.

# **Matthew 17:2**

There he [Jesus] was transfigured before them. His face shown like the sun, and his clothes became as white as the light.

# 1 Corinthians 13:12

Now we see only a reflection as in a mirror; then we shall see face to face.

### 2 Corinthians 4:6

For God, who said, "Let light shine out of darkness," made his light shine in our hearts to give us the light of the knowledge of God's glory displayed in the face of Christ.

# Revelation 1:16

In his [Jesus'] right hand he held seven stars, and coming out of his mouth was a sharp, double-edged sword. His face was like the sun shining in all its brilliance.

# FIRST

# Isaiah 44:6

This is what the Lord says - Israel's King and Redeemer, the Lord Almighty: I am the first and I am the Last; apart from me there is no God.

# Matthew 5:23-24

Therefore, if you are offering your gift at the altar and there remember that your brother or sister has something against you, leave your gift there in front of the altar. First go and be reconciled to them; then come and offer your gift.

# Matthew 6:33

Seek first his kingdom and his righteousness, and all these things will be given to you as well.

#### Matthew 7:5

First take the plank out of your own eye, and then you will see clearly to remove the speck from your brother's eye.

### Matthew 20:26-28

Whoever wants to become great among you must be your servant, and whoever wants to be first must be your slave - just as the Son of Man did not come to be served, but to serve, and to give his life as a ransom for many.

### **Matthew 23:26**

You clean the outside of the cup and dish, but inside they are full of greed and self-indulgence. Blind Pharisee! First clean the inside of the cup and dish, and then the outside also will be clean.

### Mark 9:35

Jesus called the Twelve and said, "Anyone who wants to be first must be the very last, and the servant of all."

### Mark 13:10

The gospel must first be preached in all nations.

## Acts 11:26

The disciples were called Christians first at Antioch.

### **Romans 1:17**

For in the gospel the righteousness of God is revealed - a righteousness that is by faith from first to last.

### 1 Corinthians 12:28

And God has placed first of all apostles, second prophets, third teachers, then miracles, then gifts of healing, of helping, of guidance, and of different kinds of tongues.

# 1 Corinthians 15:44-47

If there is a natural body, there is also a spiritual body. So it is written: "the first man Adam became a living being"; the last Adam, a life-giving spirit. The spiritual did not come first, but the natural, and after that the spiritual. The first man was of the dust of the earth the second man is of heaven.

# 2 Corinthians 8:5

They gave themselves first of all to the Lord, and then by the will of God also to us.

# **Ephesians 6:2**

"Honor your father and mother" - which is the first commandment with a promise - "so that it may go well with you and that you may enjoy long life on the earth."

### James 3:17

The wisdom that comes from heaven is first of all pure; then peace-loving, considerate, submissive, full of mercy and good fruit, impartial and sincere.

#### 1 John 4:19

We love because he first loved us.

### **Revelation 1:17**

When I saw him, I fell at his feet as though dead. Then he placed his right hand on me and said: "Do not be afraid. I am the First and the Last."

# FOR HIS NAME'S SAKE

# 1 Samuel 12:22

For the sake of his great name the Lord will not reject his people, because the Lord was pleased to make you his own.

# **Psalm 23:3**

He guides me in paths of righteousness for his name's sake.

# Psalm 25:11

For the sake of your name, O Lord, forgive my iniquity, though it is great.

#### **Psalm 31:3**

Since you are my rock and my fortress, for the sake of your name lead and guide me.

### Psalm 106:8

Yet he saved them for his name's sake, to make his mighty power known.

### Psalm 109:21

But you, O Sovereign Lord, deal well with me for your name's sake; out of the goodness of your love, deliver me.

## Psalm 143:11

For your name's sake, O Lord, preserve my life; in your righteousness, bring me out of trouble.

## Isaiah 48:9-11

For my own name's sake I delay my wrath; for the sake of my praise I hold it back from you, so as not to cut you off. See, I have refined you though not as silver; I have tested you in the furnace of affliction. For my own sake, for my own sake, I do this. How can I let myself be defamed? I will not yield my glory to another.

### Jeremiah 14:7

Although our sins testify against us, O Lord, do something for the sake of your name.

# Ezekiel 20:9

For the sake of my name I did what would keep it from being profaned in the eyes of the nations they lived among and in whose sight I had revealed myself to the Israelites by bringing them out of Egypt.

### Ezekiel 20:44

You will know that I am the Lord, when I deal with you for my name's sake and not according to your evil ways and your corrupt practices.

# FRIENDSHIP SECRETS OF HEAVEN

# **Deuteronomy 29:29**

The secret things belong to the Lord our God, but the things revealed belong to us and to our children forever, that we may follow all the words of this law.

# **Psalm 25:14**

The Lord confides in those who fear him; he makes his covenant known to them.

#### **Proverbs 17:17**

A friend loves at all times, and a brother is born for adversity.

# Proverbs 22:11

He who loves a pure heart and whose speech is gracious will have the king for his friend.

### Proverbs 25:2

It is the glory of God to conceal a matter; to search out a matter is the glory of kings.

### Isaiah 45:3

I will give you the treasures of darkness, riches stored in secret places, so that you may know that I am the Lord, the God of Israel, who summons you by name.

# Jeremiah 33:3

Call to me and I will answer you and tell you great and unsearchable things you do not know.

### Daniel 2:22

He reveals deep and hidden things; he knows what lies in darkness, and light dwells with him.

## **Amos 3:3**

Do two walk together unless they have agreed to do it?

#### **Amos 3:7**

Surely the Sovereign Lord does nothing without revealing his plan to his servants the prophets.

# **Matthew 13:11**

The knowledge of the secrets of the kingdom of heaven has been given to you, but not to them. Whoever has will be given more, and he will have an abundance.

### Matthew 13:16

Blessed are your eyes because they see, and your ears because they hear.

### **Luke 8:17**

For there is nothing hidden that will not be disclosed, and nothing concealed that will not be known or brought out into the open.

# John 15:13, 14, 15

Greater love has no one than this, that he lay down his life for his friends. You are my friends if you do what I command. I no longer call you servants, because a servant does not know his master's business. Instead, I have called you friends, for everything that I learned from my Father I have made known to you.

### 1 Corinthians 2:7

We speak of God's secret wisdom, a wisdom that has been hidden and that God destined for our glory before time began.

### 1 Corinthians 2:10

No eye has seen, no ear has heard, no mind has conceived what God has prepared for those who love him - but God has revealed it to us by his Spirit.

# 1 Corinthians 2:11-12

For who among men knows the thoughts of a man except the man's spirit within him? In the same way, no one knows the thoughts of God except the Spirit of God. We have not received the spirit of the world but the Spirit who is from God, that we may understand what God has freely given us.

# 1 Corinthians 2:16

But we have the mind of Christ.

### 1 Corinthians 6:19

Do you not know that your body is a temple of the Holy Spirit, who is in you, whom you have received from God? You are not your own; you were bought at a price. Therefore honor God with your body.

### Ephesians 3:20

Now to him who is able to do immeasurably more than all we ask or imagine, according to his power that is at work within us, to him be glory in the church and in Christ Jesus throughout all generations, for ever and ever! Amen.

#### Colossians 1:25-27

God gave me to present to you the word of God in its fullness - the mystery that has been kept hidden for ages and generations, but is now disclosed to the saints. To them God has chosen to make known among the Gentiles the glorious riches of this mystery, which is Christ in you, the hope of glory.

# **James 4:5**

Don't you know that friendship with the world is hatred toward God? Anyone who chooses to be a friend of the world becomes an enemy of God.

# James 4:7-8, 10

Submit yourselves, then, to God. Resist the devil, and he will flee from you. Come near to God and he will come near to you... Humble yourselves before the Lord, and he will lift you up.

# 1 John 2:23

No one who denies the Son has the Father; whoever acknowledges the Son has the Father.

# 1 John 3:24

Those who obey his commands live in him, and he in them.

# 1 John 4:15

This is the confidence we have in approaching God: that if we ask anything according to his will, he hears us.

# GREAT, GREATER, GREATEST, GREATNESS

# **GREAT**

# **Deuteronomy 10:17**

For the Lord your God is God of gods and Lord of lords, the great God, mighty and awesome, who shows no partiality and accepts no bribes.

# Psalm 19:11

By them [the ordinances of the Lord] is your servant warned; in keeping them there is great reward.

# **Psalm 89:1**

I will sing of the Lord's great love forever.

### Psalm 103:11

For as high as the heavens are above the earth, so great is his love for those who fear him.

### Psalm 107:43

Whoever is wise, let him heed these things and consider the great love of the Lord.

### Psalm 108:4

For great is your love, higher than the heavens; your faithfulness reaches to the skies.

# **Lamentations 3:22-23**

Because of the Lord's great love we are not consumed, for his compassions never fail. They are new every morning; great is your faithfulness.

## Luke 21:27

At that time they will see the Son of Man coming in a cloud with power and great glory.

# **1 Timothy 6:6**

But godliness with contentment is great gain.

# **Titus 2:13**

While we wait for the blessed hope - the glorious appearing of our great God and Savior, Jesus Christ.

# 1 John 3:1

How great is the love the Father has lavished on us, that we should be called children of God!

### **GREATER**

## Mark 12:29-31

The most important one [commandment] is this: "Hear, O Israel, the Lord our God, the Lord is one. Love the Lord your God with all your heart and with all your soul and with all your mind and with all your strength." The second is this: "Love your neighbor as yourself." There is no commandment greater than these.

# John 15:13

Greater love has no one than this, that he lay down his life for his friends. You are my friends if you do what I command.

# 1 Corinthians 12:31

But eagerly desire the greater gifts.

### **Hebrews 11:26**

He [Moses] regarded disgrace for the sake of Christ as of greater value than the treasures of Egypt, because he was looking ahead to his reward.

### 1 John 3:20

For God is greater than our hearts, and he knows everything.

### 1 John 4:4

You, dear children, are from God and have overcome them, because the one who is in you is greater than the one who is in the world.

# **GREATEST**

# **Matthew 22:38**

Love the Lord your God with all your heart and with all your soul and with all your mind. This is the first and greatest commandment.

#### Luke 9:48

For he who is least among you all - he is the greatest.

### 1 Corinthians 13:13

And now these three remain: faith, hope and love. But the greatest of these is love.

# **GREATNESS**

Great is the Lord and most worthy of praise; his greatness no one can fathom.

# Psalm 150:2

Praise the Lord. Praise God in his sanctuary; praise him in his mighty heavens; praise him for his acts of power; praise him for his surpassing greatness.

# Isaiah 63:1

Who is this coming from Edom, from Bozrah, with his garments stained crimson? Who is this, robed in splendor, striding forward in the greatness of his strength?

# Philippians 3:8

I [Paul] consider everything a loss compared to the surpassing greatness of knowing Christ Jesus my Lord, for whose sake I have lost all things. I consider them rubbish, that I may gain Christ.

# HE WILL HOLD ME

# Psalm 73:23-24

Yet I am always with you; you hold me by my right hand. You guide me with your counsel, and afterward you will take me into glory. Whom have I in heaven but you? And earth has nothing I desire besides you.

# Psalm 119:117

Uphold me, and I will be delivered; I will always have regard for your decrees.

# Psalm 139:10

If I rise on the wings of the dawn, if I settle on the far side of the sea, even there your hand will guide me, your right hand will hold me fast.

### Isaiah 41:10

So do not fear, for I am with you; do not be dismayed, for I am your God. I will strengthen you and help you; I will uphold you with my righteous right hand.

### **Isaiah 41:13**

For I am the Lord, your God, who takes hold of your right hand and says to you: Do not fear; I will help you.

### Isaiah 44:2

This is what the Lord says - he who made you, who formed you in the womb, and who will help you.

### Isaiah 49:8

This is what the Lord says: "In the time of my favor I will answer you, and in the day of salvation I will help you."

# HEARTBEAT OF GOD

# **Exodus 33:19**

And the Lord said, "I will cause all my goodness to pass in front of you, and I will proclaim my name, the Lord, in your presence. I will have mercy on whom I will have mercy, and I will have compassion on whom I will have compassion."

### Exodus 34:6-7

And he passed in front of Moses, proclaiming, "The Lord, the Lord, the compassionate and gracious God, slow to anger, abounding in love and faithfulness, maintaining love to thousands, and forgiving wickedness, rebellion and sin.

# **Deuteronomy 10:12**

And now, O Israel, what does the Lord your God ask of you but to fear the Lord your God, to walk in all his ways, to love him, to serve the Lord your God with all your heart and with all your soul, and to observe the Lord's commands and decrees that I am giving you today for your own good?

### 2 Chronicles 7:15-16

Now my eyes will be open and my ears attentive to the prayers offered in this place. I have chosen and consecrated this temple so that my Name may be there forever. My eyes and my heart will always be there.

## Psalm 25:8-10

Good and upright is the Lord; therefore he instructs sinners in his ways. He guides the humble in what is right and teaches them his way. All the ways of the Lord are loving and faithful for those who keep the demands of his covenant.

### Psalm 33:4-5

For the word of the Lord is right and true; he is faithful in all he does. The Lord loves righteousness and justice; the earth is full of his unfailing love.

## Psalm 33:6-7

By the word of the Lord the heavens were made, their starry host by the breath of his mouth. He gathers the waters of the sea into jars; he puts the deep into storehouses.

### Psalm 33:8-9

Let all the earth fear the Lord; let all the people of the world revere him. For he spoke, and it came to be; he commanded, and it stood firm.

# Psalm 33:10-11

The Lord foils the plans of the nations; he thwarts the purposes of the peoples. But the plans of the Lord stand firm forever, the purposes of his heart through all generations.

#### Psalm 103:8-12

The Lord is compassionate and gracious, slow to anger, abounding in love. He will not always accuse, nor will he harbor his anger forever; he does not treat us as our sins deserve or repay us according to our iniquities. For as high as the heavens are above the earth, so great is his love for those who fear him; as far as the east is from the west, so far has he removed our transgressions from us.

# **Isaiah 40:11**

He tends his flock like a shepherd; He gathers the lambs in his arms and carries them close to his heart; he gently leads those that have young.

# Isaiah 54:10

"Though the mountains be shaken and the hills be removed, yet my unfailing love for you will not be shaken nor my covenant of peace be removed," says the Lord, who has compassion on you.

### Isaiah 55:8-9

"For my thoughts are not your thoughts, neither are your ways my ways," declares the Lord. "As the heavens are higher than the earth, so are my ways higher than your ways and my thoughts than your thoughts."

# **Isaiah 57:15**

For this is what the high and lofty One says—he who lives forever, whose name is holy: "I live in a high and holy place, but also with him who is contrite and lowly in spirit, to revive the spirit of the lowly and to revive the heart of the contrite."

### Isaiah 63:4

For the day of vengeance was in my heart, and the year of my redemption has come.

# Isaiah 63:9

In all their distress he too was distressed, and the angel of his presence saved them. In his love and mercy he redeemed them; he lifted them up and carried them all the days of old.

#### Jeremiah 3:15

Then I will give you shepherds after my own heart, who will lead you with knowledge and understanding.

# Jeremiah 9:24

But let him who boasts boast about this: that he understands and knows me, that I am the Lord, who exercises kindness, justice and righteousness on earth, for in these I delight.

# Jeremiah 10:10

But the Lord is the true God; he is the living God, the eternal King.

### Jeremiah 10:12-13

But God made the earth by his power; he founded the world by his wisdom and stretched out the heavens by his understanding. When he thunders, the waters in the heavens roar; he makes clouds rise from the ends of the earth. He sends lightning with the rain and brings out the wind from his storehouses.

### Jeremiah 10:16

He who is the Portion of Jacob is not like these, for he is the Maker of all things, including Israel, the tribe of his inheritance—the Lord Almighty is his name.

### Jeremiah 23:20

The anger of the Lord will not turn back until he fully accomplishes the purposes of his heart.

### Jeremiah 24:7

I will give them a heart to know me, that I am the Lord. They will be my people, and I will be their God, for they will return to me with all their heart.

#### Jeremiah 32:40-41

I will make an everlasting covenant with them; I will never stop doing good to them, and I will inspire them to fear me, so that they will never turn away from me. I will rejoice in doing them good and will assuredly plant them in this land with all my heart and soul.

### **Ezekiel 11:19**

I will give them an undivided heart and put a new spirit in them; I will remove from them their heart of stone and give them a heart of flesh. Then they will follow my decrees and be careful to keep my laws. They will be my people, and I will be their God.

## Zephaniah 3:17

The Lord your God is with you, he is mighty to save. He will take great delight in you, he will quiet you with his love, he will rejoice over you with singing.

### **Matthew 5:44-45**

But I tell you: Love your enemies and pray for those who persecute you, that you may be sons of your Father in heaven. He causes his sun to rise on the evil and the good, and sends rain on the righteous and the unrighteous.

### Matthew 5:48

Be perfect, therefore, as your heavenly Father is perfect.

### Matthew 11:25-27

At that time Jesus said, "I praise you, Father, Lord of heaven and earth, because you have hidden these things from the wise and learned, and revealed them to little children. Yes, Father, for this was your good pleasure. All things have been committed to me by my Father. No one knows the Son except the Father, and no one knows the Father except the Son and those to whom the Son chooses to reveal him.

#### John 3:16

For God so loved the world that he gave his one and only Son, that whoever believes in him shall not perish but have eternal life.

# Acts 13:22

After removing Saul, he made David their king. He testified concerning him: "I have found David son of Jesse a man after my own heart; he will do everything I want him to do."

# **Romans 9:15**

Is God unjust? Not at all! For he says to Moses, "I will have mercy on whom I have mercy, and I will have compassion on whom I have compassion.

### **Romans 12:19**

Do not take revenge, my friends, but leave room for God's wrath, for it is written: "It is mine to avenge; I will repay," says the Lord.

### 2 Corinthians 1:3

Praise be to the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Father of compassion and the God of all comfort.

# **Ephesians 1:3-6**

Praise be to the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, who has blessed us in the heavenly realms with every spiritual blessing in Christ. For he chose us in him before the creation of the world to be holy and blameless in his sight. In love he predestined us to be adopted as his sons through Jesus Christ, in accordance with his pleasure and will - to the praise of his glorious grace, which he has freely given us in the One he loves.

# Ephesians 1:8-9

God's grace, that he lavished on us with all wisdom and understanding. And he made known to us the mystery of his will according to his good pleasure.

### Ephesians 1:10

To bring all things in heaven and on earth together under one head, even Christ.

# **Ephesians 1:11**

In him we were also chosen, having been predestined according to the plan of him who works out everything in conformity with the purpose of his will, in order that we, who were the first to hope in Christ, might be for the praise of his glory.

# Ephesians 1:17

I keep asking that the God of our Lord Jesus Christ, the glorious Father, may give you the Spirit of wisdom and revelation.

# **Ephesians 1:19-20**

That power is like the working of his mighty strength, which he exerted in Christ when he raised him from the dead and seated him at his right hand in the heavenly realms.

# Ephesians 3:8-10

This grace was given to me: to preach to the Gentiles the unsearchable riches of Christ, and to make plain to everyone the administration of this mystery, which for ages past was kept hidden in God, who created all things. His intent was that now, through the church, the manifold wisdom of God should be made known to the rulers and authorities in the heavenly realms, according to his eternal purpose which he accomplished in Christ Jesus our Lord.

## **Ephesians 4:24**

And to put on the new self, created to be like God in true righteousness and holiness.

# **James 5:11**

The Lord is full of compassion and mercy.

# 1 John 3:1-3

How great is the love the Father has lavished on us, that we should be called children of God! And that is what we are! ... Dear friends, now we are children of God, and what we will be has not yet been made known. But we know that when he appears, we shall be like him, for we shall see him as he is. Everyone who has this hope in him purifies himself, just as he is pure.

#### 1 John 3:24

Those who obey his commands live in him, and he in them. And this is how we know that he lives in us: We know it by the Spirit he gave us.

# HIS WORD DWELLING IN US

# 1 John 2:14

I write to you, young men, because you are strong, and the word of God lives in you.

### Psalm 119:11

I have hidden your word in my heart that I might not sin against you.

### Jeremiah 15:16

When your <u>words came, I ate them</u>; they were my joy and my heart's delight, for I bear your name, O Lord God Almighty.

# John 5:37

And the Father who sent me has himself testified concerning me. You have never heard his voice nor seen his form, <u>nor does his word dwell in you</u>, for you do not believe the one he sent.

#### John 14:9-10

Anyone who has seen me has seen the Father. How can you say, 'Show us the Father'? Don't you believe that I am in the Father and that the Father is in me? The words I say to you are not just my own. Rather, it is the Father, living in me, who is doing his work. Believe me when I say that I am in the Father and the Father is in me; or at least believe on the evidence of the miracles themselves.

### John 15:7

If you remain in me and <u>my words remain in you</u>, ask whatever you wish, and it will be given you.

### Colossians 3:16

Let the <u>word of Christ dwell in you</u> richly as you teach and admonish one another with all wisdom, and as you sing psalms, hymns and spiritual songs with gratitude in your hearts to God.

# HOLDON

# Joshua 22:5

Be very careful to keep the commandment and the law that Moses the servant of the Lord gave you: to love the Lord your God, to walk in all his ways, to obey his commands, to hold fast to him and to serve him with all your heart and all your soul.

### Job 17:9

The righteous will hold to their ways, and those with clean hands will grow stronger.

### **Proverbs 4:4**

He taught me and said, "Lay hold of my words with all your heart; keep my commands and you will live."

### 1 Thessalonians 5:21

Test everything. Hold on to the good. Avoid every kind of evil.

# 2 Timothy 1:13 KJV

Hold fast the form of sound words, which thou hast heard of me, in faith and love which is in Christ Jesus.

# 1 Timothy 6:12

Take hold of the eternal life to which you were called when you made your good confession in the presence of many witnesses.

### **Titus 1:9**

He must hold firmly to the trustworthy message as it has been taught, so that he can encourage others by sound doctrine and refute those who oppose it.

## **Hebrews 3:6**

Christ is faithful as a son over God's house. And we are his house, if we hold on to our courage and the hope of which we boast.

# Hebrews 4:14

Therefore, since we have a great high priest who has gone through the heavens, Jesus the Son of God, let us hold firmly to the faith we profess.

### **Hebrews 10:23**

Let us hold unswervingly to the hope we profess, for he who promised is faithful.

## **Revelation 2:25**

Only hold on to what you have until I come.

# **Revelation 3:3 KJV**

Remember therefore how thou hast received and heard, and hold fast, and repent.

# **Revelation 3:11**

I am coming soon. Hold on to what you have, so that no one will take your crown.

# HOUR OF TRIAL-TRIBULATION

# Revelation 3:10

Since you have kept my command to endure patiently, I will also keep you from the hour of trial that is going to come upon the whole world to test those who live on the earth.

#### Jeremiah 30:7

How awful that day will be! None will be like it. It will be a time of trouble for Jacob, but he will be saved out of it.

### **Daniel 12:1**

At that time Michael, the great prince who protects your people, will arise. There will be a time of distress such as has not happened from the beginning of nations until then. But at that time your people - everyone whose name is found written in the book - will be delivered.

### Matthew 24:21

For then there will be great distress, unequaled from the beginning of the world until now - and never to be equaled again.

# Mark 13:19-20

Those will be days of distress unequaled from the beginning, when God created the world, until now - and never to be equaled again. If the Lord had not cut short those days, no one would survive, but for the sake of the elect, whom he has chosen, he has shortened them.

## **Revelation 7:14**

These are they who have come out of the great tribulation; they have washed their robes and made them white in the blood of the Lamb.

# HUMBLE

# 2 Chronicles 7:14

If my people, who are called by my name, will humble themselves and pray and seek my face and turn from their wicked ways, then I will hear from heaven, and I will forgive their sin and will heal their land.

### **Psalm 25:9**

He guides the humble in what is right and teaches them his way.

# Proverbs 3:34

He mocks proud mockers but gives grace to the humble.

### Isaiah 57:15 RSV

For thus says the high and lofty One who inhabits eternity, whose name is Holy: "I dwell in the high and holy place, and also with him who is of a contrite and humble spirit, to revive the spirit of the humble, and to revive the heart of the contrite."

### Isaiah 66:2

This is the one I esteem: he who is humble and contrite in spirit, and trembles at my word.

#### **Matthew 11:29**

Take my yoke upon you and learn from me, for I am gentle and humble in heart, and you will find rest for your souls.

### Matthew 18:4

Therefore, whoever humbles himself like this child is the greatest in the kingdom of heaven.

## **Matthew 23:12**

For whoever exalts himself will be humbled, and whoever humbles himself will be exalted.

## **Ephesians 4:2**

Be completely humble and gentle; be patient, bearing with one another in love.

# Philippians 2:8

And being found in appearance as a man, he [Jesus] humbled himself and became obedient to death - even death on a cross!

## **James 4:10**

Humble yourselves before the Lord, and he will lift you up.

# 1 Peter 5:6

Humble yourselves, therefore, under God's mighty hand, that he may lift you up in due time.

# IAM IN YOU AND YOU ARE IN ME

# John 10:38

But if I do it, even though you do not believe me, believe the miracles, that you may know and understand that the Father is in me, and I in the Father.

# John 14:9-10

Anyone who has seen me has seen the Father. How can you say, 'Show us the Father'? Don't you believe that I am in the Father and that the Father is in me? The words I say to you are not just my own. Rather, it is the Father, living in me, who is doing his work. Believe me when I say that I am in the Father and the Father is in me; or at least believe on the evidence of the miracles themselves.

## John 14:20

On that day you will realize that I am in my Father, and you are in me, and I am in you.

### John 17:20-21

My prayer is not for them alone. I pray also for those who will believe in me through their message, that all of them may be one, Father, just as you are in me and I am in you. May they also be in us so that the world may believe that you have sent me.

### John 17:22-23

I have given them the glory that you gave me, that they may be one as we are one: I in them and you in me. May they be brought to complete unity to let the world know that you sent me and have loved them even as you have loved me.

### Romans 8:1

Therefore, there is now no condemnation for those who are in Christ Jesus.

## 2 Corinthians 5:17

Therefore, if anyone is in Christ, he is a new creation; the old has gone, the new has come.

# 1 John 3:24

Those who obey his commands live in him, and he in them. And this is how we know that he lives in us: We know it by the Spirit he gave us.

### 1 John 4:13

We know that we live in him and he in us, because he has given us of his Spirit.

## 1 John 4:15

If anyone acknowledges that Jesus is the Son of God, God lives in him and he in God.

1 John 4:16

God is love. Whoever lives in love lives in God, and God in him.

1 John 5:20

And we are in him who is true - even in his Son Jesus Christ.

# "IWILL" STATEMENTS OF GOD

# **Exodus 23:31**

I will establish your borders from the Red Sea to the Sea of the Philistines, and from the desert to the River.

# **Exodus 34:24**

I will drive out nations before you and enlarge your territory, and no one will covet your land when you go up three times each year to appear before the Lord your God.

# **Deuteronomy 11:14**

So if you faithfully obey the commands I am giving you today - to love the Lord your God and to serve him with all your heart and with all your soul - then I will send rain on your land in its season, both autumn and spring rains, so that you may gather in your grain, new wine and oil.

# **Deuteronomy 32:35**

It is mine to avenge; I will repay.

# 1 Kings 3:9-12

So give your servant a discerning heart to govern your people and to distinguish between right and wrong. For who is able to govern this great people of yours?

The Lord was pleased that Solomon had asked for this. So God said to him, "Since you have asked for this and not for long life or wealth for yourself, nor have asked for the death of your enemies but for discernment in administering justice, I will do what you have asked. I will give you a wise and discerning heart, so that there will never have been anyone like you, nor will there ever be.

# **Psalm 32:8**

I will instruct you and teach you in the way you should go; I will counsel you with my loving eye on you.

### Psalm 91:14-16

The Lord says, "I will rescue those who love me. I will protect those who trust in my name. When they call on me, I will answer; I will be with them in trouble. I will rescue and honor them. I will reward them with a long life and give them my salvation."

## **Isaiah 41:10**

So do not fear, for I am with you; do not be dismayed, for I am your God. I will strengthen you and help you, I will uphold you with my righteous right hand.

### Isaiah 42:6

I, the Lord, have called you in righteousness; I will take hold of your hand.

# Isaiah 42:16

I will lead the blind by ways they have not known, along unfamiliar paths I will guide them; I will turn the darkness into light before them and make the rough places smooth. These are the things I will do; I will not forsake them.

### Isaiah 43:1-3

Fear not, for I have redeemed you; I have summoned you by name; you are mine. When you pass through the waters, I will be with you; and when you pass through the rivers, they will not sweep over you. When you walk through the fire, you will not be burned; the flames will not set you ablaze. For I am the Lord, your God, the Holy One of Israel, your Savior.

# Isaiah 45:2

I will go before you and will level the mountains.

#### Isaiah 60:17

I will make peace your governor and well-being your ruler.

# **Isaiah 60:22**

I am the Lord; in its time I will do this swiftly.

# Jeremiah 15:19

If you repent, I will restore you

# Jeremiah 24:7

I will give them a heart to know me, that I am the Lord. They will be my people, and I will be their God, for they will return to me with all their heart.

# Jeremiah 29:10-14

This is what the Lord says, "When seventy years are completed for Babylon, I will come to you and fulfill my gracious promise to bring you back to this place. For I know the plans I have for you, declares the Lord, "plans to prosper you and not to harm you, plans to give you hope and a future. Then you will call upon me and come and pray to me, and I will listen to you. You will seek me and find me when you seek me with all your heart. I will be found by you," declares the Lord, "and will bring you back from captivity. I will gather you from all the nations and places where I have banished you," declares the Lord, "and will bring you back to the place from which I carried you into exile."

### Jeremiah 30:17

"I will restore you to health and heal your wounds," declares the Lord.

#### Jeremiah 32:39

I will give them singleness of heart and action, so that they will always fear me for their own good and the good of their children after them.

# Jeremiah 33:3

Call to me and I will answer you and tell you great and unsearchable things you do not know.

### Jeremiah 33:6

Nevertheless, I will bring health and healing to it; I will heal my people and will let them enjoy abundant peace and security. I will bring Judah and Israel back from captivity and will rebuild them as they were before. I will cleanse them from all the sin they have committed against me and will forgive all their sins of rebellion against me.

# Jeremiah 33:10

"For I will restore the fortunes of the land as they were before," says the Lord.

# Jeremiah 33:14-15

"The days are coming," declares the Lord, when I will fulfill the gracious promise I made to the house of Israel and to the house of Judah. 'In those days and at that time I will make a righteous Branch sprout from David's line; he will do what is just and right in the land.'"

### Ezekiel 11:19-20

I will give them an undivided heart and put a new spirit in them; I will remove from them their heart of stone and give them a heart of flesh. Then they will follow my decrees and be careful to keep my laws. They will be my people, and I will be their God.

# Ezekiel 26:26-27

I will give you a new heart and put a new spirit in you; I will remove from you your heart of stone, and give you a heart of flesh. And I will put my Spirit in you and move you to follow my decrees and be careful to keep my laws.

#### **Ezekiel 34:10**

This is what the Sovereign Lord says: I am against the shepherds and will hold them accountable for my flock... I will rescue my flock from their mouths, and it will no longer be food for them.

### Zechariah 9:11-12

As for you, because of my covenant with you, I will free your prisoners from the waterless pit. Return to your fortress, O prisoners of hope; even now I announce that I will restore twice as much to you.

# Malachi 3:17-18

I will spare them, just as in compassion a man spares his son who serves him. And you will again see the distinction between the righteous and the wicked, between those who serve God and those who do not.

#### John 14:2-3

In my Father's house are many rooms; if it were not so, I would have told you. I am going there to prepare a place for you. And if I go there and prepare a place for you, I will come back and take you to be with me that you also may be where I am.

### Acts 15:16

After this I will return and rebuild David's fallen tent. Its ruins I will rebuild, and I will restore it, that the remnant of men may seek the Lord, and all the Gentiles who bear my name, says the Lord, who does these things that have been known for ages.

### Romans 9:9

For this was how the promise was stated: "At the appointed time I will return, and Sarah will have a son."

### **Romans 12:19**

"It is mine to avenge; I will repay," says the Lord.

# Hebrews 13:5

Never will I leave you; never will I forsake you.

### **Revelation 3:5**

He who overcomes will, like them, be dressed in white. I will never blot out his name from the book of life, but will acknowledge his name before my Father and his angels.

# Revelation 4:1

After this I looked, and there before me was a door standing open in heaven. And the voice I had first heard speaking to me like a trumpet said, "Come up here, and I will show you what must take place after this."

# LIPS

# **Psalm 45:2**

Your lips have been anointed with grace.

# **Psalm 141:3**

Set a guard, O Lord, over my mouth; keep watch over the door of my lips.

# Proverbs 12:14

From the fruit of their lips people are filled with good things.

# **Proverbs 13:2**

From the fruit of their lips people enjoy good things.

# **Proverbs 13:3**

Those who guard their lips preserve their lives

# **Proverbs 16:23**

A wise man's heart guides his mouth, and his lips promote instruction.

# Proverbs 27:2

Let another praise you, and not your own mouth; someone else, and not your own lips.

# PRAY OVER FINANCES

## **Deuteronomy 8:3**

He humbled you, causing you to hunger and then feeding you with manna, which neither you nor your ancestors had known, to teach you that man does not live on bread alone but on every word that comes from the mouth of the Lord.

# **Deuteronomy 8:4**

Your clothes did not wear out and your feet did not swell during these forty years.

## **Deuteronomy 8:10**

And you shall eat and be full, and you shall bless the Lord your God for the good land he has given you.

# **Deuteronomy 14:22-23**

Be sure to set aside a tenth of all that your fields produce each year. Eat the tithe of your grain, new wine and olive oil, and the firstborn of your herds and flocks in the presence of the Lord your God at the place he will choose as a dwelling for his Name, so that you may learn to revere the Lord your God always.

## **Deuteronomy 15:1-3**

At the end of every seven years you must cancel debts...he shall not require payment from his...brother, because the Lord's time for canceling debts has been proclaimed...you must cancel any debt your brother owes you.

## **Deuteronomy 28:1-14**

If you fully obey the Lord your God and carefully follow all his commands I give you today, the Lord your God will set you high above all the nations on earth. All these blessings will come upon you and accompany you if you obey the Lord your God:

- You will be blessed in the city and blessed in the country.
- The fruit of your womb will be blessed.
- The crops of your land and the young of your livestock.
- Your basket and your kneading trough will be blessed.
- You will be blessed when you come in and blessed when you go out.
- The enemies who rise up against you will be defeated before you.
- The Lord will send a blessing on your barns and on everything you put your hand to.
- The Lord will bless you in the land he is giving you.
- The Lord will establish you as his holy people.
- The Lord will grant you abundant prosperity.

- The Lord will open the heavens, the storehouse of his bounty, to send rain on your land in season and to bless all the work of your hands.
- You will lend to many nations but will borrow from none.
- The Lord will make you the head, not the tail.
- You will always be at the top, never at the bottom.

## 1 Kings 17:6

The ravens brought him bread and meat in the morning and bread and meat in the evening, and he drank from the brook.

## 1 Kings 17:15-16

She went away and did as Elijah had told her. So there was food every day for Elijah and for the woman and her family. For the jar of flour was not used up and the jug of oil did not run dry, in keeping with the word of the Lord spoken by Elijah.

# 2 Kings 4:3-7

Elisha said, "Go around and ask all your neighbors for empty jars. Don't ask for just a few. Then go inside and shut the door behind you and your sons. Pour oil into all the jars, and as each is filled, put it to one side."

She left him and shut the door behind her and her sons. They brought the jars to her and she kept pouring. When all the jars were full, she said to her son, "Bring me another one."

But he replied, "There is not a jar left." Then the oil stopped flowing.

She went and told the man of God, and he said, "Go, sell the oil and pay your debts. You and your sons can live on what is left."

### 1 Chronicles 29:12

Wealth and honor come from You; You are the ruler of all things.

### 1 Chronicles 29:14

Everything comes from You, and we have given You only what comes from Your hand.

## 1 Chronicles 29:16

It (abundance) comes from Your hand; and all of it belongs to You.

### **Ecclesiastes 5:10**

Whoever loves money never has money enough; whoever loves wealth is never satisfied with his income.

# Isaiah 5:2

Why spend money on what is not bread, and your labor on what does not satisfy? Listen, listen to me, and eat what is good, and your soul will delight in the richest of fare.

### Isaiah 61:6

And you will be called priests of the Lord, you will be named ministers of our God. You will feed on the wealth of nations, and in their riches you will boast.

# Haggai 2:8

"The silver is mine and the gold is mine" declares the Lord Almighty.

### **Malachi 3:8-12**

"Will a man rob God? Yet you rob me. "But you ask, 'How do we rob you?" "In tithes and offerings. You are under a curse-the whole nation of you--because you are robbing me. Bring the whole tithe into the storehouse, that there may be food in my house. Test me in this," says the Lord Almighty, "and see if I will not throw open the floodgates of heaven and pour out so much blessing that you will not have room enough for it. I will prevent pests from devouring your crops, and the vines in your fields will not cast their fruit," says the Lord Almighty. "Then all the nations will call you blessed, for yours will be a delightful land," say the Lord Almighty.

### Matthew 6:1-4

Be careful not to do your acts of righteousness before men, to be seen by them. If you do, you will have no reward from your Father in heaven.

So when you give to the needy, do not announce it with trumpets, as the hypocrites do in the synagogues and on the streets, to be honored by men. I tell you the truth, they have received their reward in full. But when you give to the needy, do not let your left hand know what your right hand is doing, so that your giving may be in secret. Then your Father, who sees what is done in secret, will reward you.

### **Matthew 6:9-11**

Our Father in heaven, hallowed by your name, your kingdom come, your will be done on earth as it is in heaven. Give us today our daily bread.

### Matthew 6:19-21

Do not store up for yourselves treasures on earth, where moth and rust destroy, and where thieves break in and steal. But store up for yourselves treasures in heaven, where moth and rust do not destroy, and where thieves do not break in and steal. For where your treasure is, there your heart will be also.

## Matthew 6:24

No one can serve two masters. Either he will hate the one and love the other, or he will be devoted to the one and despise the other. You cannot serve both God and money (mammon).

# Matthew 6:25-27

Therefore I tell you, do not worry about your life, what you will eat or drink; or about your body, what you will wear. Is not life more important than food, and the body more important than clothes? Look at the birds of the air; they do not sow or

eat or store away in barns, and yet your heavenly Father feeds them. Are you not much more valuable than they? Who of you by worrying can add a single hour to his life?

#### **Matthew 6:28-33**

And why do you worry about clothes? See how the lilies of the field grow. They do not labor or spin. Yet I tell you that not even Solomon in all his splendor was not dressed like one of these. If that is how God clothes the grass of the field, which is here today and tomorrow is thrown into the fire, will he not much more clothe you, O you of little faith? So do not worry, saying, 'What shall we eat?' or 'What shall we drink?' or 'What shall we wear?' For the pagans run after all these things, and your heavenly Father knows that you need them. But seek first his kingdom and his righteousness, and all these things will be given to you as well.

#### Romans 13:8

Let no debt remain outstanding.

## 2 Corinthians 8:7

See that you also excel in this grace of giving.

### 2 Corinthians 9:6-8

Remember this: Whoever sows sparingly will also reap sparingly, and whoever sows generously will also reap generously. Each man should give what he has decided in his heart to give, not reluctantly or under compulsion, for God loves a cheerful giver. And God is able to make all grace abound to you, so that in all things at all times, having all that you need, you will abound in every good work.

## 2 Corinthians 9:10-11

Now he who supplies seed to the sower and bread for food will also supply and increase your store of seed and will enlarge the harvest of your righteousness. You will be made rich in every way so that you can be generous on every occasion, and through us your generosity will result in thanksgiving to God.

## Philippians 4:19

And my God will meet all your needs according to his glorious riches in Christ Jesus.

## James 1:5

If any of you lacks wisdom, he should ask God, who gives generously to all without finding fault, and it will be given to him.

### 1 John 5:14-15

This is the confidence we have in approaching God: that if we ask anything according to his will, he hears us. And if we know that he hears us-whatever we ask--we know that we have what we asked of him.

# **Ephesians 3:20**

Now unto him who is able to do immeasurably more than all we ask or imagine, according to his power that is at work within us, to him be glory in the church and in Christ Jesus throughout all generations, for ever and ever! Amen.

# SALT AND LIGHT

## **SALT**

### Matthew 5:13

You are the salt of the earth. but if the salt loses its saltiness, how can it be made salty again? It is no longer good for anything, except to be thrown out and trampled by men.

### Mark 9:50

Salt is good, but if it loses its saltiness, how can you make it salty again? Have salt in yourselves, and be at peace with each other.

### Colossians 4:6

Let your conversation be always full of grace, seasoned with salt, so that you may know how to answer anyone.

#### LIGHT

#### Psalm 56:13

For you have delivered me from death and my feet from stumbling, that I may walk before God in the light of life.

### Isaiah 42:6-7

I, the Lord, have called you in righteousness; I will take hold of your hand. I will keep you and will make you to be a covenant for the people and a light for the Gentiles, to open eyes that are blind, to free captives from prison and to release from the dungeon those who sit in darkness.

### Isaiah 49:6

I will also make you a light for the Gentiles, that you may bring my salvation to the ends of the earth.

### **Matthew 5:14-16**

You are the light of the world. A city on a hill cannot be hidden. Neither do people light a lamp and put it under a bowl. Instead they put it on its stand, and it gives light to everyone in the house. In the same way, let your light shine before men, that they may see your good deeds and praise your Father in heaven.

### Luke 11:33-36

No one lights a lamp and puts it in a place where it will be hidden, or under a bowl. Instead he puts it on its stand, so that those who come in may see the light. Your eye is the lamp of your body. When your eyes are good, your whole body also is full of

light. But when they are bad, your body also is full of darkness. See to it, then, that the light within you is not darkness. Therefore, if your whole body is full of light, and not part of it is dark, it will be completely lighted, as when the light of a lamp shines on you. (NIV)

### John 3:19-21

This is the verdict: Light has come into the world, but men loved darkness instead of light because their deeds were evil. Everyone who does evil hates the light, and will not come into the light for fear that his deeds will be exposed. But whoever lives by the truth comes into the light, so that it may be seen plainly that what he has done has been done through God.

### John 12:35-36 NLT

Jesus replied, "My light will shine for you just a little longer. Walk in the light while you can, so the darkness will not overtake you. Those who walk in the darkness cannot see where they are going. Put your trust in the light while there is still time; then you will become children of the light."

### 2 Corinthians 6:14

Do not be yoked together with unbelievers. For what do righteousness and wickedness have in common? Or what fellowship can light have with darkness?

## **Ephesians 5:8-10, 13**

For you were once darkness, but now you are light in the Lord. Live as children of light (for the fruit of the light consists in all goodness, righteousness and truth) and find out what pleases the Lord... For everything exposed by the light becomes visible, for it is light that makes everything visible.

### 1 Thessalonians 5:5

You are all sons of the light and sons of the day. We do not belong to the night or to the darkness.

#### 1 John 1:7

If we walk in the light, as he is in the light, we have fellowship with one another, and the blood of Jesus, his Son, purifies us from all sin.

### 1 John 2:9

Anyone who claims to be in the light but hates his brother is still in the darkness. Whoever loves his brother lives in the light, and there is nothing in him to make him stumble.

### 1 Peter 2:9

But you are a chosen people, a royal priesthood, a holy nation, a people belonging to God, that you may declare the praises of him who called you out of darkness into his wonderful light.

# THE BODY OF CHRIST

## 1 Corinthians 12:12-13

The body is a unit, though it is made up of many parts; and though all its parts are many, they form one body. So it is with Christ. For we were all baptized by one Spirit into one body - whether Jews or Greeks, slave or free - and we were all given the one Spirit to drink.

# **Ephesians 1:22-23**

And God placed all things under his feet and appointed him to be head over everything for the church, which is his body, the fullness of him who fills everything in every way.

## **Ephesians 4:11-13**

It was he who gave some to be apostles, some to be prophets, some to be evangelists, and some to be pastors and teachers, to prepare God's people for works of service, so that the body of Christ may be built up until we all reach unity in the faith and in the knowledge of the Son of God and become mature, attaining to the whole measure of the fullness of Christ.

# THE BRIDE OF CHRIST

# THE BRIDE OF CHRIST

### John 3:29

The bride belongs to the bridegroom. The friend [John the Baptist] who attends the bridegroom [Christ] waits and listens for him, and is full of joy when he hears the bridegroom's voice. That joy is mine, and it is now complete.

#### Romans 7:4

So, my brothers, you also died to the law through the body of Christ, that you might belong to another, to him who was raised from the dead, in order that we might bear fruit to God.

### 2 Corinthians 11:2

I am jealous for you with a godly jealousy. I promised you to one husband, to Christ, so that I might present you as a pure virgin to him.

## **Ephesians 5:25-27**

Husbands, love your wives, just as Christ loved the church and gave himself up for your to make her holy, cleansing her by the washing with water through the world, and to present her to himself as a radiant church, without stain or wrinkle or any other blemish, but holy and blameless.

## **Ephesians 5:32**

For this reason a man will leave his father and mother and be united to his wife, and the two will become one flesh. This is a profound mystery - but I am talking about Christ and the church.

## Revelation 19:7

Let us rejoice and be glad and give him glory! For the wedding of the Lamb has come, and his bride has made herself ready.

# **Revelation 21:9**

One of the seven angels who had the seven bowls full of the seven last plagues came and said to me, "Come, I will show you the bride, the wife of the Lamb." And he carried me away in the Spirit to a mountain great and high, and showed me the Holy City, Jerusalem, coming down out of heaven from God.

# THE DAY OF THE LORD'S ANGER

## Jeremiah 23:20

The anger of the Lord will not turn back until he fully accomplishes the purposes of his heart. In days to come you will understand it clearly.

# Zephaniah 1:14

The great day of the Lord is near - near and coming quickly.

## Zephaniah 1:18

In the fire of his jealousy the whole world will be consumed, for he will make a sudden end of all who live in the earth.

# Zephaniah 2:3

Seek the Lord, all you humble of the land, you who do what he commands. Seek righteousness, seek humility; perhaps you will be sheltered on the day of the Lord's anger.

# THE FND

## **Daniel 12:13**

But as for you, go your way to the end; then you will enter into rest and rise again for your allotted portion at the end of the age.

### Habakkuk 2:3

For the revelation awaits an appointed time; it speaks of the end and will not prove false. Though it linger, wait for it; it will certainly come and will not delay.

# **Matthew 10:22**

All men will hate you because of Me, but he who stands firm to the end will be saved.

### **Matthew 13:39**

The harvest is the end of the age, and the harvesters are angels.

#### **Matthew 13:40**

As the weeds are pulled up and burned in the fire, so it will be at the end of the age.

#### **Matthew 13:49**

This is how it will be at the end of the age. The angels will come and separate the wicked from the righteous and throw them into the fiery furnace, where there will be weeping and gnashing of teeth.

### Matthew 24:3

As Jesus was sitting on the Mount of Olives, the disciples came to him privately. "Tell us," they said, "when will this happen, and what will be the sign of your coming and of the end of the age?"

### Matthew 24:6

You will hear of wars and rumors of wars, but see to it that you are not alarmed. Such things must happen, but the end is still to come.

### **Matthew 24:13**

But he who stands firm to the end will be saved.

## Matthew 24:14

And this gospel of the kingdom will be preached in the whole world as a testimony to all nations, and then the end will come.

## **Matthew 28:20**

And surely I am with you always, to the very end of the age.

### Luke 21:9

When you hear of wars and revolutions, do not be frightened. These things must happen first, but the end will not come right away.

### **John 13:1 RSV**

Now before the feast of the Passover, when Jesus knew that his hour had come to depart out of this world to the Father, having loved his own who were in the world, he loved them to the end.

#### **Acts 1:8**

But you will receive power when the Holy Spirit comes on you; and you will be my witnesses in Jerusalem, and in all Judea and Samaria, and to the ends of the earth.

#### **Romans 10:4**

Christ is the end of the law so that there may be righteousness for everyone who believes.

### 1 Corinthians 15:22-25

For as in Adam all die, so in Christ all will be made alive. But each in his own turn: Christ, the firstfruits; then, when he comes, those who belong to him. Then the end will come when he hands over the kingdom to God the Father after he has destroyed all dominion, authority and power. For he must reign until he has put all his enemies under his feet.

## Hebrews 9:26

But now, once for all time, he has appeared at the end of the age to remove sin by his own death as a sacrifice. - Hebrews 9:26

## 1 Peter 1:5

Whom God in His power is guarding through faith for a salvation that even now stands ready for unveiling at the end of the age.

# 1 Peter 4:7

The end of all things is near. Therefore be clear minded and self-controlled so that you can pray.

# THE LORD'S REWARD

## **Isaiah 40:10**

See, the Sovereign Lord comes with power, and his arm rules for him. See, his reward is with him, and his recompense accompanies him.

## Isaiah 62:11-12

See, your Savior comes! See, his reward is with him, and his recompense accompanies him. They will be called the Holy People, the Redeemed of the Lord.

## Revelation 22:12

Behold, I am coming soon! My reward is with me, and I will give to everyone according to what he has done.

# WHOJESUSSAYSHEIS

What Jesus is like, how He thinks, what He desires, what His hopes and dreams are, in His own words.

from the book of John.

You believe because I told you I saw you under the fig tree.

I tell you the truth, you shall see heaven open, and the angels of God ascending and descending on the Son of Man.

My time has not yet come.

How dare you turn my Father's house into a market!

Destroy this temple, and I will raise it again in three days.

I tell you the truth, no one can see the kingdom of God unless he is born again.

No one has ever gone into heaven except the one who came from heaven--the Son of Man.

The Son of Man must be lifted up, that everyone who believes in him may have eternal life.

For God did not send his Son into the world to condemn the world, but to save the world through him.

Whoever believes in him is not condemned, but whoever does not believe stands condemned already because he has not believed in the name of God's one and only Son.

This is the verdict: Light has come into the world,

Whoever drinks the water I give him will never thirst. Indeed, the water I give him will become in him a spring of water welling up to eternal life.

Yet a time is coming and has now come when the true worshipers will worship the Father in spirit and truth, for they are the kind of worshipers the Father seeks. God is spirit, and his worshipers must worship in spirit and in truth.

My food is to do the will of him who sent me and to finish his work.

My Father is always at his work to this very day, and I, too, am working.

I tell you the truth, the Son can do nothing by himself; he can do only what he sees his Father doing, because whatever the Father does the Son also does. For the Father loves the Son and shows him all he does.

For just as the Father raises the dead and gives them life, even so the Son gives life to whom he is pleased to give it.

Moreover, the Father judges no one, but has entrusted all judgment to the Son, that all may honor the Son just as they honor the Father.

He who does not honor the Son does not honor the Father, who sent him.

I tell you the truth, whoever hears my word and believes him who sent me has eternal life and will not be condemned; he has crossed over from death to life.

I tell you the truth, a time is coming and has now come when the dead will hear the voice of the Son of God and those who hear will live.

For as the Father has life in himself, so he has granted the Son to have life in himself.

And he has given him authority to judge because he is the Son of Man.

A time is coming when all who are in their graves will hear this voice and come outthose who have done good will rise to live, and those who have done evil will rise to be condemned

By myself I can do nothing; I judge only as I hear, and my judgment is just, for I seek not to please myself but him who sent me.

I have testimony weightier than that of John. For the very work that the Father has given me to finish, and which I am doing, testifies that the Father has sent me.

And the Father who sent me has himself testified concerning me.

These are the Scriptures that testify about me.

I do not accept praise from men,

I have come in my Father's name

If you believed Moses, you would believe me, for he wrote about me.

The work of God is this: to believe in the one he has sent.

It is my Father who gives you the true bread from heaven. For the bread of God is he who comes down from heaven and gives life to the world.

I am the bread of life. He who comes to me will never go hungry, and he who believes in me will never be thirsty.

All that the Father gives me will come to me, and whoever comes to me I will never drive away.

For I have come down from heaven not to do my will but to do the will of him who sent me.

And this is the will of him who sent me, that I shall lose none of all that he has given me, but raise them up at the last day.

For my Father's will is that everyone who looks to the Son and believes in him shall have eternal life, and I will raise him up at the last day.

No one can come to me unless the Father who sent me draws him, and I will raise him up at the last day.

No one has seen the Father except the one who is from God; only he has seen the Father.

I tell you the truth, he who believes has everlasting life.

I am the bread of life. I am the living bread that came down from heaven. If anyone eats of this bread, he will live forever. This bread is my flesh, which I will give for the life of the world.

I tell you the truth, unless you eat the flesh of the Son of Man and drink his blood, you have no life in you. Whoever eats my flesh and drinks my blood has eternal life, and I will raise him up at the last day. For my flesh is real food and my blood is real drink. Whoever eats my flesh and drinks my blood remains in me, and I in him.

Just as the living Father sent me and I live because of the Father, so the one who feeds on me will live because of me.

The words I have spoken to you are spirit and they are life.

The world - hates me because I testify that what it does is evil.

I am not yet going up to this Feast, because for me the right time has not yet come.

My teaching is not my own. It comes from him who sent me.

I am not here on my own, but he who sent me is true.

You do not know him, but I know him because I am from him and he sent me.

I am with you for only a short time, and then I go to the one who sent me.

Whoever believes in me, as the Scripture has said, streams of living water will flow from within him.

I am the light of the world. Whoever follows me will never walk in darkness, but will have the light of life.

I know where I came from and where I am going.

I pass judgment on no one. But if I do judge, my decisions are right, because I am not alone. I stand with the Father, who sent me.

I am one who testifies for myself; my other witness is the Father, who sent me.

If you knew me, you would know my Father also.

I am going away, and you will look for me, and you will die in your sin. Where I go, you cannot come.

You are from below; I am from above. You are of this world; I am not of this world.

When you have lifted up the Son of Man, then you will know that I am the one I claim to be and that I do nothing on my own but speak just what the Father has taught me.

The one who sent me is with me; he has not left me alone, for I always do what pleases him.

If you hold to my teaching, you are really my disciples. Then you will know the truth, and the truth will set you free.

I tell you the truth, everyone who sins is a slave to sin.

If the Son sets you free, you will be free indeed.

If God were your Father, you would love me, for I came from God and now am here. I have not come on my own; but he sent me.

Why is my language not clear to you? Because you are unable to hear what I say. You belong to your father, the devil, and you want to carry out your father's desire.

He who belongs to God hears what God says. The reason you do not hear is that you do not belong to God.

I am not seeking glory for myself; but there is one who seeks it, and he is the judge.

I tell you the truth, if anyone keeps my word, he will never see death.

My Father, whom you claim as your God, is the one who glorifies me.

I tell you the truth, before Abraham was born, I am!

As long as it is day, we must do the work of him who sent me. Night is coming, when no one can work.

While I am in the world, I am the light of the world.

For judgment I have come into this world, so that the blind will see and those who see will become blind.

The man who enters by the gate is the shepherd of his sheep.

The watchman opens the gate for him, and the sheep listen to his voice.

He calls his own sheep by name and leads them out. When he has brought out all his own, he goes on ahead of them, and his sheep follow him because they know his voice.

I tell you the truth, I am the gate for the sheep.

I am the gate; whoever enters through me will be saved. He will come in and go out, and find pasture.

I have come that they may have life, and have it to the full.

I am the good shepherd. The good shepherd lays down his life for the sheep.

I am the good shepherd; I know my sheep and my sheep know me --just as the Father knows me and I know the Father--and I lay down my life for the sheep.

I have other sheep that are not of this sheep pen. I must bring them also. They too will listen to my voice, and there shall be one flock and one shepherd.

The reason my Father loves me is that I lay down my life--only to take it up again. No one takes it from me, but I lay it down of my own accord. I have authority to lay it down and authority to take it up again. This command I received from my Father.

The miracles I do in my Father's name speak for me, but you do not believe because you are not my sheep.

My sheep listen to my voice; I know them, and they follow me.

I give them eternal life, and they shall never perish;

No one can snatch them out of my hand.

My Father, who has given them to me, is greater than all; no one can snatch them out of my Father's hand.

I and the Father are one.

Why then do you accuse me of blasphemy because I said, 'I am God's Son'? Do not believe me unless I do what my Father does. But if I do it, even though you do not believe me, believe the miracles, that you may know and understand that the Father is in me, and I in the Father.

(Lazarus) This sickness will not end in death. No, it is for God's glory so that God's Son may be glorified through it.

I am the resurrection and the life. He who believes in me will live, even though he dies; and whoever lives and believes in me will never die.

Father, I thank you that you have heard me. I knew that you always hear me, but I said this for the benefit of the people standing here, that they may believe that you sent me.

The hour has come for the Son of Man to be glorified. I tell you the truth, unless a kernel of wheat falls to the ground and dies, it remains only a single seed. But if it dies, it produces many seeds.

Whoever serves me must follow me; and where I am, my servant also will be. My Father will honor the one who serves me.

Now my heart is troubled, and what shall I say? 'Father, save me from this hour'? No, it was for this very reason I came to this hour. Father, glorify your name!

Now is the time for judgment on this world; now the prince of this world will be driven out.

But I, when I am lifted up from the earth, will draw all men to myself.

When a man believes in me, he does not believe in me only, but in the one who sent me. When he looks at me, he sees the one who sent me. I have come into the world as a light, so that no one who believes in me should stay in darkness.

As for the person who hears my words but does not keep them, I do not judge him. For I did not come to judge the world, but to save it. There is a judge for the one who rejects me and does not accept my words; that very word which I spoke will condemn him at the last day.

For I did not speak of my own accord, but the Father who sent me commanded me what to say and how to say it. I know that his command leads to eternal life. So whatever I say is just what the Father has told me to say.

Unless I wash you, you have no part with me.

You call me 'Teacher' and 'Lord,' and rightly so, for that is what I am.

I know those I have chosen.

I tell you the truth, whoever accepts anyone I send accepts me; and whoever accepts me accepts the one who sent me.

Now is the Son of Man glorified and God is glorified in him. If God is glorified in him, God will glorify the Son in himself, and will glorify him at once.

My children, I will be with you only a little longer. You will look for me, and just as I told the Jews, so I tell you now: Where I am going, you cannot come.

A new command I give you: Love one another. As I have loved you, so you must love one another. By this all men will know that you are my disciples, if you love one another.

Where I am going, you cannot follow now, but you will follow later.

Do not let your hearts be troubled. Trust in God; trust also in me.

In my Father's house are many rooms; if it were not so, I would have told you. I am going there to prepare a place for you. And if I go and prepare a place for you, I will come back and take you to be with me that you also may be where I am.

You know the way to the place where I am going.

I am the way and the truth and the life. No one comes to the Father except through me.

If you really knew me, you would know my Father as well. From now on, you do know him and have seen him.

Anyone who has seen me has seen the Father.

The words I say to you are not just my own. Rather, it is the Father, living in me, who is doing his work.

Believe me when I say that I am in the Father and the Father is in me; or at least believe on the evidence of the miracles themselves.

I tell you the truth, anyone who has faith in me will do what I have been doing. He will do even greater things than these, because I am going to the Father.

And I will do whatever you ask in my name, so that the Son may bring glory to the Father. You may ask me for anything in my name, and I will do it.

If you love me, you will obey what I command.

And I will ask the Father, and he will give you another Counselor to be with you forever - the Spirit of truth. The world cannot accept him, because it neither sees him nor knows him. But you know him, for he lives with you and will be in you. I will not leave you as orphans; I will come to you.

Before long, the world will not see me anymore, but you will see me.

Because I live, you also will live. On that day you will realize that I am in my Father, and you are in me, and I am in you.

Whoever has my commands and obeys them, he is the one who loves me.

He who loves me will be loved by my Father, and I too will love him and show myself to him.

If anyone loves me, he will obey my teaching. My Father will love him, and we will come to him and make our home with him.

He who does not love me will not obey my teaching.

These words you hear are not my own; they belong to the Father who sent me.

But the Counselor, the Holy Spirit, whom the Father will send in my name, will teach you all things and will remind you of everything I have said to you.

Peace I leave with you; my peace I give you. I do not give to you as the world gives.

Do not let your hearts be troubled and do not be afraid.

I will not speak with you much longer, for the prince of this world is coming. He has no hold on me, but the world must learn that I love the Father and that I do exactly what my Father has commanded me.

I am the true vine, and my Father is the gardener. He cuts off every branch in me that bears no fruit, while every branch that does bear fruit he prunes so that it will be even more fruitful.

You are already clean because of the word I have spoken to you.

Remain in me, and I will remain in you. No branch can bear fruit by itself; it must remain in the vine. Neither can you bear fruit unless you remain in me.

I am the vine; you are the branches.

If a man remains in me and I in him, he will bear much fruit; apart from me you can do nothing.

If anyone does not remain in me, he is like a branch that is thrown away and withers; such branches are picked up, thrown into the fire and burned.

If you remain in me and my words remain in you, ask whatever you wish, and it will be given you.

As the Father has loved me, so have I loved you. Now remain in my love.

If you obey my commands, you will remain in my love, just as I have obeyed my Father's commands and remain in his love.

I have told you this so that my joy may be in you and that your joy may be complete.

My command is this: Love each other as I have loved you. Greater love has no one than this, that he lay down his life for his friends.

You are my friends if you do what I command.

I have called you friends, for everything that I learned from my Father I have made known to you.

You did not choose me, but I chose you and appointed you to go and bear fruit - fruit that will last. Then the Father will give you whatever you ask in my name.

This is my command: Love each other.

I have chosen you out of the world. That is why the world hates you.

When the Counselor comes, whom I will send to you from the Father, the Spirit of truth who goes out from the Father, he will testify about me.

But I tell you the truth: It is for your good that I am going away. Unless I go away, the Counselor will not come to you; but if I go, I will send him to you.

He will bring glory to me by taking from what is mine and making it known to you. All that belongs to the Father is mine. That is why I said the Spirit will take from what is mine and make it known to you.

I tell you the truth, my Father will give you whatever you ask in my name. Until now you have not asked for anything in my name. Ask and you will receive, and your joy will be complete.

I came from the Father and entered the world; now I am leaving the world and going back to the Father.

I have told you these things, so that in me you may have peace. In this world you will have trouble. But take heart! I have overcome the world.

I have brought you glory on earth by completing the work you gave me to do. And now, Father, glorify me in your presence with the glory I had with you before the world began.

I have revealed you to those whom you gave me out of the world.

For I gave them the words you gave me and they accepted them. They knew with certainty that I came from you, and they believed that you sent me.

I pray for them. I am not praying for the world, but for those you have given me, for they are yours.

All I have is yours, and all you have is mine.

And glory has come to me through them. I will remain in the world no longer, but they are still in the world, and I am coming to you.

While I was with them, I protected them and kept them safe by that name you gave me.

I am coming to you now, but I say these things while I am still in the world, so that they may have the full measure of my joy within them.

I have given them your word and the world has hated them, for they are not of the world any more than I am of the world.

My prayer is not that you take them out of the world but that you protect them from the evil one. They are not of the world, even as I am not of it.

Sanctify them by the truth; your word is truth.

As you sent me into the world, I have sent them into the world. For them I sanctify myself, that they too may be truly sanctified.

I pray also for those who will believe in me through their message, that all of them may be one, Father, just as you are in me and I am in you. May they also be in us so that the world may believe that you have sent me.

I have given them the glory that you gave me, that they may be one as we are one. I in them and you in me.

Righteous Father, though the world does not know you, I know you, and they know that you have sent me.

I have made you known to them, and will continue to make you known in order that the love you have for me may be in them and that I myself may be in them.

My kingdom is not of this world. If it were, my servants would fight to prevent my arrest by the Jews. But now my kingdom is from another place.

You are right in saying I am a king. In fact, for this reason I was born, and for this I came into the world, to testify to the truth. Everyone on the side of truth listens to me.

Peace be with you!

As the Father has sent me, I am sending you.

Receive the Holy Spirit.

If you forgive anyone his sins, they are forgiven; if you do not forgive them, they are not forgiven.

Because you have seen me, you have believed; blessed are those who have not seen and yet have believed.

You must follow me.

# WITHTHEMEASUREYOUUSE

## Luke 6:37-38

Do not judge, and you will not be judged. Do not condemn, and you will not be condemned. Forgive, and you will be forgiven. Give, and it will be given to you. A good measure, pressed down, shaken together and running over, will be poured into your lap. For with the measure you use it will be measured back to you.

## **Luke 6:31**

Do to others as you would have them do to you.

## Matthew 7:1

Do not judge, or you too will be judged. For in the same way you judge others, you will be judged, and with the measure you use, it will be measured to you.

## Matthew 7:12

So in everything, do to others what you would have them do to you, for this sums up the Law and the Prophets.

# WORDS OF JESUS TO SPEAK TO FEARS

## WORDS OF JESUS IN MATTHEW 4:17 TO 18:19

#### Matthew

| 4 1 7 | ъ .       | C .1   | 4 .      | 1 (    | • 1        |           |
|-------|-----------|--------|----------|--------|------------|-----------|
| 4:17  | Repent,   | tor th | ie kino  | dom ot | heaven     | is near   |
| 1.1/  | TCOponic, | IOI U  | ic Kills | uom or | IICu v CII | is incui. |

- 4:19 Come, follow me, and I will make you fishers of men.
- 5:42 Give to the one who asks you
- 5:44 Love your enemies and pray for those who persecute you.
- 5:48 Be perfect, therefore, as your heavenly Father is perfect
- 6:1 Be careful not to do your acts of righteousness before men, to be seen by them.
- 6:6 When you pray, go into your room, close the door, and pray unto your Father who is unseen
- 6:10 Your kingdom come, your will be done, on earth as it is in heaven.
- 6:11 Give us today our daily bread
- 6:12 Forgive your debtors
- 6:13 Keep us from temptation and deliver us from the evil one
- 6:17 When you fast, do it in secret
- 6:25 Do not worry about your life
- 6:19 Do not store up for yourselves treasures on earth.
- 6:34 Do not worry about tomorrow.
- 6:33 Seek first his kingdom
- 7:1 Do not judge
- 7:6 Do not give dogs what is sacred.
- 7:7 Ask, seek, knock
- 7:12 Do to others what you would have them do to you.
- 7:13 Enter through the narrow gate
- 7:15 Watch out for false prophets. By their fruit you will recognize them.
- 7:24 Hear these words of Mine and put them into practice
- 8:3 Be clean
- 8:7 I will go and heal him
- 8:13 Go! It will be done just as you believed it would.
- 8:22 Follow Me and let the dead bury their own dead.
- 8:26 You of little faith, why are you so afraid?
- 9:22 Take heart, daughter, your faith has healed you.
- 9:29 According to your faith will it be done to you.
- 10:28 Do not be afraid of those who kill the body but cannot kill the soul.
- 11:27 All things have been committed to me by my Father.
- 11:28 Come to me, all you who are weary and burdened, and I will give you rest.
- 13:11 The knowledge of the secrets of the kingdom of heaven has been given to you, but not to them.
- 13:52 Every teacher of the law who has been instructed about the kingdom of heaven is like the owner of a house who brings out of this storeroom new treasures as well as old.
- 14:27 Take courage! It is I. Don't be afraid.
- 16:23 Get behind me, Satan! You are a stumbling block to me; you do not have in mind the things of God, but the things of men.

- 18:18 I tell you the truth, whatever you bind on earth will be bound in heaven, and whatever you loose on earth will be loosed in heaven
  If two of you on earth agree about anything you ask for, it will be done for you by my
- 18:19 Father in heaven.